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Letter to Shareholders

To All of Our Shareholders,

We are pleased to share another successful year with you. In our second full year as a public 
company, we made remarkable strides in all aspects of our business -- financially and operation-
ally, as well as in our community. This is in no small part due to our employees’ dedication and 
hard work, which have helped to drive our success in 2007.  

Consolidated revenue reached NT$200.9 billion and net income was NT$49.5 billion, represent-
ing year-over-year growth of 7.8% and 17.5%, respectively. We grew revenue through increased 
subscriber numbers for our broadband and mobile services, and we had really encouraging 
growth from our international wholesale capacity and foreign calling card sales. Furthermore, we 
reported strong revenue contributions from Senao and our other subsidiaries. 

Our focus on providing integrated services and high quality customer relations has allowed us 
to strengthen our clear market-leading position. We provide fixed line local service for about 13 
million customers and 86% and 62% of the market’s long distance services and international di-
aling services in terms of minutes, respectively. In 2007, our mobile customer count increased by 
2.5% to 8.7 million, reaching approximately 36% of the market. Our broadband market share has 
steadily increased; we have now captured approximately 87% of the broadband market.  

We also made great progress on our initiatives to streamline operations, with the completion of 
three years of our early retirement incentive plan and a strict review of our capital expenditures 
contributing to decreased expenses in particular. 2007 was a profitable year for Chunghwa Tele-
com, and we are proud to have exceeded our profit forecast, despite some regulatory headwinds.  

Over the past two years, we have worked closely with the National Communication Commission 
(NCC) to ensure that we are operating in accordance with regulations.  Moving forward, we are 
enthusiastic about continuing our collaborative and constructive working relationship with the 
NCC as the industry changes to meet evolving consumer tastes, trends, and preferences.

To further our efforts to continuously improve the efficiency of our capital structure and build 
shareholder returns, in April, the Board of Directors approved our Company’s first capital reduc-
tion of NT$9.67 billion, resulting in the return of NT$0.91 per share in cash to shareholders. In 
August 2007, the Board authorized a second share repurchase program, and over the course of 
September and October of 2007, we purchased approximately 121 million CHT shares, the equiv-
alent of 1.14% of the total shares outstanding, for NT$7.2 billion.

Diversified Growth Opportunities

We would like to highlight three key growth opportunities for CHT: digital convergence, value-
added services, and M&A and strategic alliances.   



The Advantage of Digital Convergence 

Next Generation Network (NGN): Progress continues on our NGN build out, and we have 
already made great advances toward completing the new fiber network. In May, the NCC ap-
proved CHT’s FTTx launch and we have started to connect homes and businesses alike via the 
fiber network. By the end of 2007, we made connections to 15,383 commercial and residen-
tial buildings, and we represent about 90% of the total commercial building network market 
share.

Deployment of our IP-based NGN encourages the usage of and demand for our fiber network 
by bringing about both a faster network and more versatile fixed mobile convergence servic-
es. For retail customers, digital home services, such as video phone, MOD (Multimedia-on-
Demand), HDTV, video monitoring, remote care, and remote learning will be available, and 
our Unified Communication Service will be available specifically for corporate customers. 

IPTV: Following certification of our open platform by the NCC in January 2008 and approval 
of our operating plan in October 2007, we began our island-wide MOD operation. We have 
begun an active marketing effort to increase awareness of the ways that IPTV and digital con-
vergence can improve and enrich the traditional customer user experience, particularly in con-
junction with fiber access.  Our IP-based network platform is a very important aspect of this 
usage evolution, as it will be the channel through which we will deliver enhanced content and 
services to our customers.  IPTV is attractive to customers because it enables pay-per-view 
and on-demand programs in addition to broadcast channels; we’ve recently improved this of-
fering by launching our HDTV programs over our IPTV platform. 

Strengthening Value-Added Services (VAS)

Mobile Data Communications: Our 3G subscriber base increased by 143% year-over-year 
to 2.3 million as of December 2007, demonstrating the ever-increasing demand for mobile 
data services. To leverage this trend, we have collaborated with handset manufacturers to 
offer promotional internet browsing service packages via 3.5G data cards. For example, our 

 service for corporate customers using our CHT9000 series handsets, which are co-
branded with High Tech Computer Corp. (HTC), enables mobile office functionality such as 
push mail, calendars, and to-do-lists, to facilitate mobile data usage. As of 2007, VAS revenue 
from CHT9000 series handset users accounted for 30% of the APRU from this device. 

Multimedia-on-Demand (MOD): We will continue to drive demand for our MOD value-added 
services by working with popular content providers, such as major Hollywood studios and 
video rental chains, to publish additional titles and add channels to our line up. Our program 
to offer Major League Baseball games through IPTV was a success, and our achievements 
have given us confidence that we will be able to apply that knowledge to our Olympic Games 
offering in 2008. As of the end of 2007, MOD subscriptions increased by 58.3% year-over-
year and we have set a subscriber target of 1 million for the end of 2008. 

Strengthening cooperation with content providers: As mobile phone usage patterns and cus-
toms evolve over time, and we will work hard to develop new interactive services for our mo-
bile devices, including family banking, digital coursework, educational materials, and other 
forms of entertainment. We will continue to initiate alliances and relationships with institu-
tions, such as banks and universities, in order to make our value-added services more effec-
tive and attractive for our users. 



Merger and Acquisition/Strategic Alliances

As an integrated telecommunications service provider, Chunghwa Telecom is well-positioned 
to explore synergistic M&A and strategic alliance opportunities in our core business by con-
structing partnerships that foster collaboration between our upstream and downstream busi-
nesses. Our 2007 acquisition of 31.3% ownership of Senao International demonstrates the 
value proposition of these integration initiatives: Senao, with its island-wide retail stores, af-
ter office-hour operations, and extensive handset purchase and sale experience, has helped to 
fortify Chunghwa’s standing in the growing mobile business service.

We have already invested in content providers like Elta and KKBOX, the online music com-
pany. The combination of their professional management and skills with our broad customer 
base and distribution channels will enable us to provide more video & music multimedia ser-
vices on our hiChannel, emome and MOD platforms.

In order to integrate group resources, the Board of Directors agreed to buy 100% of the 
Chunghwa Telecom Global, Donghwa Telecom and Chunghwa System Integration shares on 
December 2007. Chunghwa Global and Donghwa Telecom will be responsible for overseas 
marketing and promotional activities to enterprise customers in America, Hong Kong and 
Southeast Asia, while Chunghwa System Integration will be responsible for providing ICT 
equipment and system integration support for enterprise customers.

Corporate Social Responsibility and Corporate Governance

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) and sustainability are very important parts of our Com-
pany’s culture. Maintaining a balanced relationship between the environment and corporate soci-
ety is an important long-term goal for Chunghwa Telecom in addition to enhancing shareholder 
value. 

CSR: We have been a member of World Business Council for Sustainability and Development
for three years and we have participated in the Carbon Disclosure Project for the last two 
years. We began our 2007 CSR project by establishing six working groups: corporate gover-
nance, environmental sustainability, customer care, digital opportunity, employee care, and 
volunteer worker programs. The Company’s long-term target is to become a carbon neutral 
company and our CSR vision is to focus our operating strategies in order to maximize value 
and quality of life for our customers, shareholders, and employees.

To communicate our CSR initiatives, Chunghwa Telecom is publishing a dedicated CSR an-
nual report for 2007, in accordance with the third generation structure of sustainability re-
porting guidelines of the Global Reporting Initiative.

Corporate Governance: We are proud to be identified as the Corporate Governance model for 
companies that have transitioned to public companies from government agencies or govern-
ment enterprises. A major component of the corporate spirit that permeates our Company is 
an intention to always remain alert and self-disciplined to Corporate Governance related mat-
ters. Our employees are honored to hold a top corporate governance ranking, and we are all 
determined to extend our leadership position in this regard. 



Our commitment to Corporate Governance and Corporate Responsibility is deeply rooted in our 
operations, and we are proud of the external recognition we have received for our efforts. We 
were named The Best Corporate Citizen Award for 2007 from CommonWealth Magazine; we 
were granted a CG6002 Certificate by the Corporate Governance Association (CGA) and we were 
also highly ranked at the 2007 Asset Corporate Governance Awards. 

Outlook for 2008

While we are proud of our achievements in 2007, we believe there are many opportunities for 
continued growth in 2008: to continue to improve our core business, to promote convergence 
through bundled services, to further streamline our operations, and to enhance operations through 
M&A activity and strategic alliances.  Specifically, we have named our plan for investments the 
“Three O’s Strategy,” and it centers on Optics, the Olympics, and Overseas Investment.  

Optics

We will continue the Next Generation Network roll out and fiber coverage expansion, 
strengthening our position as Taiwan’s leading integrated telecommunications provider 
through higher capacity and superior service. We will continue to pursue fiber access and 
value-added services as a parallel effort, as VAS-related events will allow a better opportunity 
to establish a more extensive fiber and IP-based network. We will execute a precise, custom-
er-focused marketing effort to make fiber a more extensive, attractive, and profit-returning 
deployment. 

We also will continue our 3G/3.5G construction to broaden 3G and 3.5G coverage and 
increase the transmission speed of HSDPA in order to stimulate the migration of mobile cus-
tomers to higher revenue platforms in our core businesses. 

The Olympics

We are excited to have exclusive broadcasting rights on new media in Taiwan for the Bei-
jing 2008 Olympic Games. We will provide the real-time broadcasting on our IPTV, Internet 
and mobile platforms, namely MOD , hiChannel, and . Moreover, we will conduct 
service operations, marketing activities, and advertising campaigns in order to enable an ef-
ficient cross-platform solution. We believe that this exciting event will introduce a new Inter-
net experience to many of our users. What has traditionally been a one-way observation of the 
Games via the Internet will now be a much more exciting and interactive experience. Users 
can form their own online communities to open dialogue with others, and stay engaged and 
informed via the additional background information about the Games and the athletes that 
will be displayed adjacent to the Games themselves. This platform will bring a new experi-
ence to the world of sports and serve as an important profit center for Chunghwa Telecom, 
as users begin to demand a similar heightened service for additional sporting and entertain-
ment events.  We will also be able to leverage the associated online advertising opportunities 
through our Yellow Pages business. 



In conjunction with our Olympic Games initiatives, we will also make investments to further 
the vertical integration of our services with value-added content providers. Our partnerships 
with selected providers will extend a profitable channel, through which we can encourage us-
age by increasing the effectiveness and attractiveness of our VAS. The addition of attractive 
value-added services, such as banking or shopping via the mobile handset, will help us to ex-
tend our loyal customer base. 

Overseas Investments

Our investments outside of Taiwan will focus on Southeast Asia, which we believe is a region 
with strong potential for further growth. We believe there is an opportunity to have a strong 
and rewarding business operation in those countries that expands our current service. 

In addition to the Three O’s, we believe property development will be a growth driver outside our 
core business initiatives. We have established a Property Development & Management subsidiary 
called Light Era Development Company, which will manage our real estate business profession-
ally and efficiently. We have streamlined our Company’s operations and increased the effective-
ness of our asset management capabilities by having this specialized team focusing solely on real 
estate projects.

We are looking forward to a successful and exciting year ahead. We thank you for your contin-
ued interest and support, and we are looking forward to keeping you updated on our progress 
throughout 2008 and beyond. 

              Tan Ho Chen         Shyue-Ching Lu
     Chairman & CEO         President

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
We have made forward-looking statements in this annual report. These forward-looking statements contain information regarding, 

among other things, our financial condition, future expansion plans and business strategy. The words “believe,” ”expect,” “estimate,” 

“intend,” “plan,” “seek,” “will,” “shall” and other similar words identify forward-looking statements. We have based these forward-

looking statements on our current expectations and projections about future events. Although we believe that these expectations and 

projections are reasonable, such forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT MAY NOT BE REALIZED
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PART I

ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISERS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE

Not applicable.

ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION

We were privatized as a result of a secondary ADS offering and concurrent domestic auction of our
common shares on August 12, 2005. The privatization has enabled us to develop our business and respond to
changing market conditions more rapidly and efficiently.

A. Selected Financial Data

The selected income statement data and cash flow data for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and
2007, and the selected balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006 and 2007 set forth below, have been prepared
in accordance with U.S. GAAP and are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this annual report and should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified in their entirety by
reference to, our consolidated financial statements and the related notes. The selected income statement and cash
flow data for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004, and the selected balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 set forth below, are derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements not included in this annual report.

As of or for the year ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

(in billions, except per share and per pro forma ADS information)
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$

Income Statement Data:
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 182.5 185.2 184.7 186.3 200.9 6.2
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of revenues(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59.6 58.7 68.1 62.6 71.2 2.2
Marketing(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20.0 19.3 23.7 20.6 21.8 0.7
General and administrative(1) . . . . 2.7 2.5 3.5 3.3 3.1 0.1
Research and development(1) . . . . . 2.6 2.5 3.1 2.8 2.6 0.1
Depreciation and amortization—

cost of revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39.2 38.4 38.8 38.4 37.1 1.1
Depreciation and amortization—

operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 0.1

Total operating costs and
expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 126.5 123.7 139.6 130.0 138.1 4.3

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56.0 61.5 45.1 56.3 62.8 1.9
Other income, net(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.5 0.1

Income before income tax and minority
interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57.6 62.2 46.0 57.4 64.3 2.0

Income tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10.3 11.3 12.7 15.3 14.5 0.5

Income before minority interest . . . . . . 47.3 50.9 33.3 42.1 49.8 1.5
Minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 0.013 0.3 0.01

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47.3 50.9 33.3 42.1 49.5 1.5
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As of or for the year ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

(in billions, except per share and per pro forma ADS information)
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash Flow Data:

Other Financial Data:



4

Currency Translations and Exchange Rates

Year Ended December 31, Average(1) High Low
At Period

End

B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

D. Risk Factors

Risks Relating to Our Company and the Taiwan Telecommunications Industry
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If we fail to maintain a good relationship with our labor union, work stoppages or labor unrest could occur
and the quality of our services as well as our reputation could suffer.

Changes in technology may render our current technologies obsolete or require us to obtain licenses for
introducing new services or make substantial capital investments, financing for which may not be available to
us on favorable commercial terms or at all.
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U.S. dollars ever trades at or above NT$32.70 per US$1.00 after December 12, 2007, the contract will be
terminated at that time. The amount of unrealized valuation loss arising from this contract for the year ended
December 31, 2007 was NT$580 million. As of April 22, 2008, the noon buying rate in the City of New York for
cable transfers of New Taiwan dollars as certified for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York was NT$30.26 per US$1.00. For the duration of the contract, we will be required to make cash payments to
Goldman every two weeks if the foreign exchange rate is below NT$31.50 per US$1.00. If the NT dollar
continues to further appreciate against the U.S. dollar, the amount of our cash payments would increase, and the
aggregate amount of payments could become significant if such exchange levels are prolonged. This foreign
currency derivative contract may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. See Item 11. “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Foreign Currency Risk.”

Any further economic downturn or decline in the growth of the population in Taiwan may materially and
adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

We conduct most of our operations and generate most of our revenues in Taiwan. As a result, any decline in
the Taiwan economy or a decline in the growth of the population in Taiwan may materially and adversely affect
our financial condition, results of operations and prospects. In recent years, the banking and financial sectors in
Taiwan have been seriously harmed by the general economic downturn in Taiwan and the rest of Asia, which has
resulted in a depressed property market and an increase in the number of companies filing for corporate
reorganization and bankruptcy protection. Although economic conditions in Taiwan have improved since 2003,
the global slowdown in technology expenditures has also from time to time adversely affected the Taiwan
economy, which is highly dependent on the technology industry. We cannot assure you that economic conditions
in Taiwan will continue to improve in the future or that our business and operations will not be materially and
adversely affected by deterioration in the Taiwan economy.

We face substantial political risks associated with doing business in Taiwan, particularly due to domestic
political events and the tense relationship between the Republic of China and the People’s Republic of China,
which could negatively affect the value of your investment.

Our principal executive offices and substantially all of our assets are located in Taiwan, and substantially all
of our revenues are derived from our operations in Taiwan. Accordingly, our business, financial condition and
results of operations and the market price of our common shares and the ADSs may be affected by changes in
Republic of China governmental policies, taxation, inflation or interest rates and by social instability and
diplomatic and social developments in or affecting Taiwan which are outside of our control. Taiwan has a unique
international political status. Since 1949, Taiwan and the Chinese mainland have been separately governed. The
People’s Republic of China, or PRC, claims that it is the sole government in China and that Taiwan is part of
China. Although significant economic and cultural relations have been established during recent years between
the Republic of China and the PRC, relations have often been strained. The PRC government has refused to
renounce the use of military force to gain control over Taiwan. Furthermore, the PRC government passed an
Anti-Secession Law in March 2005, which authorizes non-peaceful means and other necessary measures should
Taiwan move to gain independence from the PRC. Past developments in relations between the Republic of China
and the PRC have on occasion depressed the market prices of the securities of companies in the Republic of
China. Relations between the Republic of China and the PRC and other factors affecting military, political or
economic conditions in Taiwan could materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations, as well as the market price and the liquidity of our securities.

Any future outbreak of contagious diseases may materially and adversely affect our business and operations,
as well as our financial condition and results of operations.

Any future outbreak of contagious diseases, such as severe acute respiratory syndrome or avian influenza,
may disrupt our ability to adequately staff our business and may generally disrupt our operations. If any of our
employees is suspected of having contracted any contagious disease, we may under certain circumstances be
required to quarantine such employees and the affected areas of our premises. As a result, we may have to
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Risks Relating to Ownership of Our ADSs and Common Shares
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Holders of American depositary receipts evidencing our ADSs may exercise voting rights with respect to the
common shares represented by these ADSs only in accordance with the provisions of our deposit agreement. The
deposit agreement provides that, upon receipt of notice of any meeting of holders of our common shares, the
depositary bank will, as soon as practicable thereafter if requested by us in writing, mail to ADS holders the
notice of the meeting sent by us, voting instruction forms and a statement as to the manner in which instructions
may be given by the holders.

ADS holders will not generally be able to exercise voting rights attaching to the deposited securities on an
individual basis. Under the deposit agreement, the voting rights attaching to the deposited securities must be
exercised as to all matters subject to a vote of shareholders collectively in the same manner, except in the case of
an election of directors and supervisors. The election of our directors and supervisors is by means of cumulative
voting. In the event the depositary does not receive voting instructions from ADS holders in accordance with the
deposit agreement, our chairman or his or her designee will be entitled to vote the common shares represented by
the ADSs in the manner he or she deems appropriate at his or her discretion, which may not be in your interest.

We may from time to time distribute rights to our shareholders, including rights to acquire our securities.
Under the deposit agreement, the depositary will not offer you those rights unless the distribution to ADS holders
of both the rights and any related securities are either registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Act, or exempt from registration under the Securities Act. We are under no obligation
to file a registration statement with respect to any such rights or securities or to endeavor to cause such a
registration statement to be declared effective. Moreover, we may not be able to establish an exemption from
registration under the Securities Act. Accordingly, you may be unable to participate in our rights offerings and
may experience dilution in your holdings.

If the depositary is unable to sell rights that are not exercised or not distributed or if the sale is not lawful or
reasonably practicable, it will allow the rights to lapse, in which case you will receive no value for these rights.

Your ability to convert proceeds received from your ownership of ADSs depends on existing and future
exchange control regulations of the Republic of China. Under the current laws of the Republic of China, an ADS
holder or the depositary, without obtaining further approvals from the Central Bank of the Republic of China
(Taiwan) or any other governmental authority or agency of the Republic of China, may convert NT dollars into
other currencies, including U.S. dollars, in respect of:

the proceeds of the sale of common shares represented by ADSs or received as share dividends with
respect to the common shares and deposited into the depositary receipt facility; and

any cash dividends or distributions received from the common shares represented by ADSs.

In addition, the depositary may also convert into NT dollars incoming payments for purchases of common
shares for deposit in the depositary receipt facility against the creation of additional ADSs. If you withdraw the
common shares underlying your ADSs and become a holder of our common shares, you may convert into NT
dollars subscription payments for rights offerings. The depositary may be required to obtain foreign exchange
approval from the Central Bank of the Republic of China (Taiwan) on a payment-by-payment basis for
conversion from NT dollars into foreign currencies of the proceeds from the sale of subscription rights of new
common shares. Although it is expected that the Central Bank of the Republic of China (Taiwan) will grant
approval as a routine matter, required approvals may not be obtained in a timely manner, or at all.
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Under the Republic of China Foreign Exchange Control Law, the Executive Yuan of the Republic of China
may, without prior notice but subject to subsequent legislative approval rendered within ten days from such
imposition, impose foreign exchange controls or other restrictions in the event of, among other things, a material
change in domestic or international economic conditions which might threaten the stability of the domestic
economy in Taiwan.

You are required to register with the Taiwan Stock Exchange and appoint several local agents in Taiwan if
you withdraw common shares from our ADS facility and become our shareholder, which may make your
ownership burdensome.

If you are a non-Republic of China person and wish to withdraw common shares represented by your ADSs
from our ADS facility and hold those common shares, you are required under the current laws and regulations of
the Republic of China to appoint an agent, also referred to as a tax guarantor, in the Republic of China for filing
tax returns and making tax payment. A tax guarantor must meet certain qualifications set by the Ministry of
Finance of the Republic of China and, upon appointment, becomes a guarantor of your Republic of China tax
obligations. If you wish to repatriate profits derived from the sale of withdrawn common shares or cash dividends
or interest on funds derived from the withdrawn common shares, you will be required to submit evidence of your
appointment of a tax guarantor and the approval of the appointment by the Republic of China tax authorities. You
may not be able to appoint and obtain approval for a tax guarantor in a timely manner.

In addition, under the current laws of the Republic of China, you will be required to be registered as a
foreign investor with the Taiwan Stock Exchange for making investments in the Republic of China securities
market prior to your withdrawal and holding of common shares represented by the ADSs. You will be required to
appoint a local agent in Taiwan to, among other things, open a securities trading account with a local securities
brokerage firm and a bank account to remit funds, exercise shareholders’ rights and perform other functions as
holders of ADSs may designate. You must also appoint a local bank to act as custodian for handling confirmation
and settlement of trades, safekeeping of securities and cash proceeds and reporting and declaration of
information. Without the relevant registration and appointment of the local agent and custodian and the opening
of a securities trading account and bank account, you will not be able to hold, subsequently sell or otherwise
transfer our common shares withdrawn from the ADSs facilities on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Our actual financial results may differ materially from our published full year guidance.

Each year, we voluntarily publish operating results guidance for the current fiscal year prepared in
accordance with R.O.C. GAAP. These projections are based on a number of estimates and assumptions and are
inherently subject to significant uncertainties and contingencies, including the risks factors described in this
annual report. In particular, projections are forward-looking statements that are necessarily speculative in nature,
and it can be expected that one or more of the estimates on which the projections were based will not materialize
or will vary significantly from actual results, and such variances will likely increase over time.

ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

A. History and Development of the Company

Our legal and commercial name is Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Our common shares have been listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange under the number “2412” since October 27, 2000 and our ADSs have been listed on
the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CHT” since July 17, 2003. Our principal executive offices are
located at 21-3 Hsinyi Road, Section 1, Taipei, Taiwan, Republic of China, and our telephone number is
(886) 2-2344-5488. Our website address is http://www.cht.com.tw. The information on our website does not form
a part of this annual report.

We were established as a company on July 1, 1996 as a result of the separation of the business and
regulatory functions of the Directorate General of Telecommunications. We were privatized in August 2005.
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Competitive Strengths
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We have a broad customer base in Taiwan.

We are an integrated full-service telecommunications provider in Taiwan.

Broad range of communications products and services

Broad network coverage

Brand awareness, distribution channels and customer service

Operational expertise

Comprehensive customer billing infrastructure



19

We have the capital resources and technology to enhance our leading position in the growing cellular and
Internet services markets.

Established position in growing markets

Strong capital structure

Advanced network technology

Research and development expertise

Business Strategy

Focus on our core strengths while expanding our scope of services to capture new growth opportunities
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Fixed line

Cellular

Internet and data
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Bundled services

Emphasize quality of service and customer satisfaction

Improve operational efficiency and cost structure

Capital expenditures
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Personnel costs

Expand our business through alliances, acquisitions and investments

Alliances

Acquisitions.

Investments.
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Maintain focus on maximizing shareholder value

B. Business Overview

Our Principal Lines of Business

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions, except percentages)
NT$ NT$ NT$
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Fixed Line

Local Telephone

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions)
NT$ NT$ NT$

As of December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in thousands, except percentages
and per household data)
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Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in millions, except percentages)

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
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Domestic Long Distance Telephone

We provide domestic long distance telephone services in Taiwan. Total revenues from domestic long
distance telephone services comprised 5.9%, 5.3% and 4.6% of our revenues in 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. Our average market share in the domestic long distance market was approximately 84.7%, 83.6%
and 86.5% in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Residential customers accounted for 60.5% of our domestic
long distance revenues in 2007.

The following table sets forth information with respect to usage of our domestic long distance telephone
services for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in millions, except percentages)

Domestic long distance telephone service usage (minutes) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,131 4,643 4,325
Growth rate (compared to the same period in the prior year) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8.7)% (9.5)% (6.8)%

Minutes of use for domestic long distance calls have been declining as a result of traffic migration to
cellular services, competition from other fixed line operators and increased use of VoIP. We expect declines in
minutes of use for fixed line services to continue in the future for the same reasons.

The following table sets forth information with respect to the average domestic long distance usage charge
per minute for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

Average local telephone usage fee (per minute) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . NT$1.65 NT$1.65 NT$1.66
Growth rate (compared to the same period in the prior year) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0% 0% 0.6%

All domestic long distance calls, regardless of the distance between the calling parties, have the same tariff.
We changed the unit of billing from a per-minute basis to a per-second basis effective February 1, 1999. In
addition, we reduced our peak hour domestic long distance rate in April 2001 from NT$0.045 per second to our
current rate of NT$0.035 per second. Our current domestic long distance rate for off-peak hours is NT$0.025 per
second. The rates for both peak hours and off-peak hours are the same for residential and business customers.
Our average domestic long distance usage charge per minute remained flat between 2005 and 2006, and there
was a 0.6% increase in 2007 due to a 1.5% increase in peak hours usage over 2006.

We provide so-called “intelligent” network services over our domestic long distance network, including toll-
free calling, universal number, televoting, premium rate service and VPNs. We also focus on offering our
customers an increasing number of value-added services and flexible tariff packages.

International Long Distance Telephone

We provide international long distance telephone services in Taiwan. Total revenues from international long
distance telephone services comprised 7.9%, 7.6% and 7.2% of our revenues in 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. Residential customers generated 37.1% of our international long distance revenues during 2007. In
addition, we provide wholesale international long distance services to international simple resale operators that
do not possess their own telephone network or infrastructure.

Since fixed line services have been open for competition since 2001, we expect competition in this line of
business will continue to intensify. We believe other fixed line operators consider the international long distance
market to be their primary focus. Our average market share of the international long distance market was
approximately 57.8%, 58.3% and 61.6% in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Our market share increased in
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Destination
Percentage of total
outgoing minutes

Percentage of total
incoming minutes

As of December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in thousands, except
percentages and

incoming/outgoing ratio)
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Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions)
NT$ NT$ NT$
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Cellular Services

Cellular service is one of our principal business activities. We are Taiwan’s largest provider of cellular
services in terms of both revenues and customers. In 2005, we generated revenues of NT$73.0 billion, or 39.5%
of our total revenues, from cellular services. In 2006, we generated revenues of NT$73.0 billion (US$2.3 billion),
or 39.2% of our total revenues, from cellular services. In 2007, we generated revenues of NT$73.7 billion
(US$2.3 billion), or 36.7% of our total revenues, from cellular services.

The following table sets forth our revenues from cellular services for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions)
NT$ NT$ NT$

Cellular revenues:
Usage(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60.8 59.7 59.2
Interconnection . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.0 7.3 7.6
Mobile data . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.2 4.2 5.2
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.0 1.8 1.7

Total cellular . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73.0 73.0 73.7

(1) Includes monthly fees.

As the market for cellular services has continued to expand, we have experienced substantial growth in our
cellular customer base. We are the largest cellular operator in Taiwan in terms of revenues and number of
customers. We had 8.70 million cellular customers, for a market share of approximately 40.3% of total 2G
cellular customers and approximately 34.5% of total 2G cellular services revenues in Taiwan, as of December 31,
2007. Revenues from cellular services comprised approximately 39.5%, 39.2% and 36.7% of our total revenues
in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Mobile data revenues as a percentage of total cellular revenues were 4.4%,
5.7% and 7.0% for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

We offer digital cellular service through our dual band GSM network. We are one of the three national
licensed providers of GSM services. We have been allocated 15 MHz in the 900 MHz frequency band and 11.25
MHz in the 1800 MHz frequency band for GSM services and general packet-switched radio services, or GPRS,
and 15 MHz paired spectrum plus 5 MHz unpaired spectrum in the 2 GHz frequency band for 3G cellular
services. This is the largest frequency spectrum allocation to any cellular operator in Taiwan. In February 2002,
the Ministry of Transportation and Communications granted 3G cellular services concessions to five companies,
including us. In March 2002, we paid NT$10.2 billion to the government for our concession. Our 3G cellular
services license is valid until December 31, 2018. In July 2005, we launched our 3G cellular telephone services
using WCDMA technology. We also offer the largest international roaming network among Taiwan cellular
service providers. In particular, our 2G customers have access to 318 networks in 168 countries through our
GSM service roaming network and 164 networks in 84 countries through our GPRS roaming network. In
addition, our 3G service system includes 60 networks in 34 counties.

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately 13,500 cellular base stations (including both GSM base
stations and 3G cellular base stations) covering substantially all of Taiwan’s population. We use these base
stations to support both our GSM network and our GPRS network. In 2007, we greatly enhanced our
competitiveness by upgrading more than 4,000 base stations with HSDPA capacity in the larger metropolises of
Taiwan. We will continue this process ofi mplementing HSDPA upgrades in the following five major areas in
Taiwan: Taipei City, Taipei County, Taoyuan County, Taichung City and Kaohsiung City.
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The following table sets forth information regarding our cellular service operations and our cellular
customer base for the periods indicated.

As of or for the year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

Taiwan population (in thousands)(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,770 22,877 22,958
Total cellular customers in Taiwan (in thousands)(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,876 23,249 24,302
Penetration (as a percentage of the population)(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 87.3% 101.6% 105.9%
Total cellular revenues in Taiwan—2G (in billions)(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . NT$ 205.2 NT$ 185.2 NT$ 154.9
Number of our cellular customers (in thousands)(2)(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,158 8,487 8,699
Our market share by customers—2G(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39.6% 40.9% 40.3%
Our market share by revenues—2G . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.0% 35.7% 34.5%
Number of our prepaid customers (in thousands) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 603 636 632
Our prepaid customers as a percentage of our total customers . . . . . . 7.4% 7.5% 7.3%
Annualized churn rate(5) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16.8% 11.6% 10.25%
Minutes of usage (in millions of minutes)

Incoming . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,720 10,403 10,636
Outgoing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,921 9,227 9,586

Average minutes of usage per cellular customer per month(2)(6) . . . . . 190 197 196
Average revenue per cellular customer per month(2)(7) . . . . . . . . . . . . NT$ 744 NT$ 731 NT$ 715

(1) Data from the Department of Population, Ministry of the Interior, Republic of China
(2) The number of cellular customers is based on the number of subscriber identification module, or SIM, cards.

From 2004, the number of our cellular customers excludes prepaid subscription accounts that are inactive
for more than three months. In 2007, the total number of cellular customers in Taiwan included personal
handy-phone system and 3G customers.

(3) Data from the statistical monthly release by National Communications Commission, Republic of China.
(4) Includes GSM, GPRS and 3G services.
(5) Measures the rate of customer disconnections from cellular service, determined by dividing (a) our

aggregate voluntary and involuntary deactivations (excluding deactivations due to customers switching from
one of our cellular services to another) during the relevant period by (b) the average number of customers
during the period (calculated by averaging the number of customers at the beginning of the period and the
end of the period), and multiplying the result by the fraction where (c) the numerator is 12 and (d) the
denominator is the number of months in that period.

(6) Average minutes of usage per cellular customer per month is calculated by dividing the total minutes of
usage during the period by the average of the number of our cellular customers on the first and last days of
the period and dividing the result by the number of months in the relevant period.

(7) Average revenue per user per month is calculated by dividing our aggregate cellular services revenues
during the relevant period by the average of the number of our cellular customers on the first and last days
of the period and dividing the result by the number of months in the relevant period.

The cellular market in Taiwan has grown rapidly since the liberalization of the market in 1997. Total
cellular customers in Taiwan have reached approximately 24.3 million as of December 31, 2007. Cellular
penetration was approximately 105.9% on the same date. We expect customer growth to continue to slow as a
result of market saturation. In addition, the overall cellular services market experienced a slight increase of 0.2%
in revenues in 2007.We believe that any future growth in the number of cellular customers will depend largely
upon continuing improvements in wireless technologies and wireless data applications and the availability of
advanced cellular phones.

We began offering prepaid card services in October 2000. As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately
0.6 million prepaid customers representing approximately 7.3% of our total cellular customers. Prepaid
customers do not pay monthly fees but pay a higher usage charge on a per second basis. Once the prepayment has
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Internet and Data Services
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Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions)
NT$ NT$ NT$

Internet Services

HiNet and Internet Access

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions)
NT$ NT$ NT$

As of December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in thousands, except percentages)
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As of December 31,

2005 2006 2007
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Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

NT$ NT$ NT$
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Internet Value-added Services

www.hinet.net

www.hichannel.hinet.net

Wireless Local Area Network Service

Data Services

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions)
NT$ NT$ NT$

Leased Line Services
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As of December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in gigabits per second)

Managed Data Services

Internet Data Center Services

Multimedia on Demand Services
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Other

Sales of Cellular Phones

Satellite Services

Telephone Directories

Corporate Solution Services and Billing Handling Services

Leasing of Real Estate Owned By Us to Third Parties

Paging Services
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Interconnection

Year ended December 31

2005 2006 2007

(in billions)
NT$ NT$ NT$

Interconnection fee revenues:

Interconnection costs:

Marketing, Sales and Distribution

Marketing Strategy

Services, Products and Bundled Offerings
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Pricing and Promotions

Distribution Channels

Business Customers

Advertising

Sales and Distribution

Customer Service and Billing

www.cht.com.tw
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Network Infrastructure

Internet Protocol Broadband Backbone Network

Transmission Networks
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2007, we had approximately 5.22 million lines of ADSL and had 3.7 million ADSL customers. In addition, the
Ethernet-based FTTx system is also introduced into our access network to provide broadband services, such as
MOD, high speed Internet access and VPN.

As of December 31, 2007, we have constructed approximately 991,400 FTTx ports and had 537,000 FTTx
customers. Our FTTx service can offer high-speed broadband Internet access rates up to 100 Mbps. We plan to
expand the number of FTTx ports access to approximately 5.0 million by 2011.

Switching Networks

Domestic telecommunications network. Our domestic public switched telephone network consists of 19
message areas connected by a long distance network. As of December 31, 2007, we had 58 long distance
exchanges, which are interconnection points between our telecommunications network.

We currently have intelligent networks installed over our public switched telephone networks for our
domestic long distance and international networks, as well as a local intelligent network in the Taipei, Taichung
and Kaohsiung metropolitan areas. Our intelligent network is designed to facilitate the use of value-added
services by providing more information about calls and allowing greater management of those calls.

As of December 31, 2007, our domestic network included 17.4 million installed telephone lines, and
reached virtually all homes and businesses in Taiwan.

International network. Our international transmission infrastructure consists of both submarine cable and
satellite transmission systems, which link our national network directly to 91 telecommunications service
providers in 51 international destinations.

International calls are routed between Taiwan and international destinations through one of our two
international switching centers, one located in Taipei and the other in Kaohsiung. Each center had two TDM
international gateway switches and one NGN international gateway switch. In total, we had a trunk capacity of
95,040 channels as of December 31, 2007.

We currently invest in 20 submarine cables, six of which land in Taiwan. Our aggregate total capacity in the
undersea cables in which we invest is 124 gigabits per second.

Cellular Services Network

Our cellular services network consists of:

ell sites, which are physical locations equipped with a base station consisting of transmitters, receivers
and other equipment used to communicate through radio channels with customers’ cellular telephone
cellular phones within the range of a cell;

base station controllers, which connect to, and control, the base station within each cell site;

mobile switching service centers, which control the base station controllers and the processing and
routing of telephone calls;

gateway GPRS support nodes, which connect our GPRS network to the Internet;

serving GPRS support nodes, which connect the GPRS network to the base station controllers; and

transmission lines, which link (i) with respect to the GSM network, the mobile switching service
centers, base station controllers, base stations and the public switched telephone network, and (ii) with
respect to the GPRS network, the base station controllers, the support nodes and the Internet.
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The following table sets forth selected information regarding our cellular networks as of the dates indicated.

As of December 31,

2005 2006 2007

GSM system
GSM base stations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,413 8,597 9,042
Switches . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54 54 51
Lines of capacity (in thousands) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,500 8,500 8,500
Taiwan population coverage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 99.9% 99.9% 99.9%
GPRS gateway support nodes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 25 25
GPRS Serving support nodes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 20 20
GPRS System capacity (in thousands) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,000 2,000 3,880

As of December 31, 2007

3G system
3G base stations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,471
Switches . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
Lines of capacity (in thousands) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,400
Taiwan population coverage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 89.0%
GPRS gateway support nodes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16
Serving support nodes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
System capacity (in thousands) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,400

We provide cellular services based on the GSM network standards. We have dual band 900 MHz and 1800
MHz frequency spectrums for our GSM services. In addition, we have installed an intelligent network on our
cellular services network infrastructure to enable us to provide prepaid services as well as a wide range of
advanced call features and value-added services. We have also installed wireless application protocol gateways
on our cellular services network that enable us to provide wireless application protocol services. We began
providing cellular communications services based on the GPRS network standards in August 2001, using
“emome” as the portal name.

As our customer base continued to grow, we increased the capacity of our intelligent network to more than
1.5 million customers. We also completed a system expansion of our cellular services network to accommodate
more than 8.5 million customers (including 2 million GPRS customers) at the end of 2003. We have GPRS and
15 MHz paired spectrum plus 5 MHz unpaired spectrum in the 2 GHz frequency band for our 3G cellular
services. In preparation for the launch of 3G cellular services, we contracted with Nokia Corporation to provide
the core network, radio access network, service network, transmission network and maintenance network for
approximately NT$12 billion over three years. As of December 31, 2007, we have completed the construction of
approximately 4,470 3G base stations with a network capacity of 2.4 million lines. We launched our 3G cellular
services on July 26, 2005. As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately 2,291,000 3G cellular services
customers.

Paging Network

The primary components of our paging network are:

paging control systems, which receive and encode incoming messages; and

base stations, which transmit messages to the customer’s pager.

Our paging network uses, among other technologies, the open paging protocol developed by Motorola. This
technology provides higher data rate, larger content capacity, longer battery life and better error correction
capabilities than other existing paging technologies.
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Internet Network

Leased Line and Data Switching Networks

Competition

Fixed Line
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Cellular

Internet and Data

Properties



45

Insurance

Employees

Our Pension Plans

Legal Proceedings

Capital Expenditures

Enforceability of Judgments in Taiwan
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Regulation

Overview

Regulatory Authorities
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Telecommunications Act

The Telecommunications Act and the regulations under the Telecommunications Act establish the
framework and govern the various aspects of the Taiwan telecommunications industry, including:

licensing of telecommunications services;

estrictions on dominant telecommunications service providers;

tariff control and price cap regulation;

ccounting separation system;

interconnection arrangements;

bottleneck facilities;

spectrum allocation;

provision of universal services;

equal access;

number portability; and

ownership limitations.

Each of these aspects is described below. The Telecommunications Act also establishes a non-auction
pricing system for assignment of radio frequencies.

Licensing of Telecommunications Services

Type I and Type II Service Providers

Under the Telecommunications Act, telecommunications service providers are classified into two
categories:

Type I. Type I service providers are providers that install network infrastructure, such as network
transmission, switching and auxiliary equipment for the provision of telecommunications services. Type I
services include fixed line services such as local, domestic long distance and international long distance services,
as well as interconnection, leased line, ADSL and satellite services and wireless services such as cellular,
including 3G cellular, paging, mobile data and trunked radio services.

Type II. Type II service providers are defined as all telecommunications service providers other than Type I
service providers. Type II services are divided into special services and general services. Special services include
simple resale, VoIP international leased circuit and other services specified by the Ministry of Transportation and
Communications before March 1, 2006 or by the National Communications Commission from March 1, 2006.
General services include any Type II service other than special services.

Until 1996, we were the sole provider of Type I services in Taiwan. In 1996, the government opened the
market for cellular, paging and trunked radio, mobile data and digital low power cordless telephone services. In
1998, the government opened the market for fixed line and mobile satellite services. In June 2001, the
government granted licenses to three operators for establishing fixed line services, thereby opening the market
for fixed line services. Since August 2000, the government has permitted four undersea cable operators to engage
in the undersea cable leased-circuit business.

Commencing in 2007, the National Communications Commission began accepting applications for licenses
to provide fixed line services in March, June, September and December of each year. The National
Communications Commission started to accept applications for fixed line services on a daily basis beginning in
2008. There is no limit on the number of fixed line licenses that they may decide to issue.



49

Granting of Licenses

Type I

Fixed Line Services.
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Wireless Services

Third Generation Cellular Services
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Satellite Services

Type II
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Restrictions on Dominant Telecommunications Services Providers

Tariff Control and Price Cap Regulation
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Accounting Separation System

Interconnection Arrangements
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Bottleneck Facilities

Spectrum Allocation
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Provision of Universal Services

Equal Access

Number Portability
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Local Loop Unbundling

Co-location

Ownership Limitations

Administrative Fee Law
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In addition, under the Public Road Law, as amended in July 2003, administrative authorities of public roads
may collect usage fees from the users of public roads. According to the Rules Governing Collection of Usage
Fees on Public Roads, the relevant collection agencies, including agencies designated by the Ministry of
Transportation and Communications and municipal governments, depending on the types of public roads, may
collect usage fees from users, including us, for establishing lines along with the public roads.

In trying to reduce state compensation and improve the government’s image, the Ministry of Transportation
and Communications passed Amendment #72 of the Public Road Law in June 2007. Clauses amended include
stipulations that manhole covers need to be lower than the road surface by at least 10 centimeters and that new or
repaired urban roads need to be leveled, with the difference in road surface heights within a three meter radius no
more than 0.6 centimeters. The amendment was brought up for consideration by the Legislative Yuan on June 18,
2007. However, as of January 31, 2008, when the Sixth Legislative Term ended, the amendment had not yet
passed. According to the bylaws of the Legislative Yuan, any bill that has not been resolved by the current
legislative term shall not be deliberated during the next term.

Statute of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.

In light of the privatization of our company, the Executive Yuan, on May 1, 2006, proposed a motion for the
abolishment of the Statute of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. for legislative approval. Because the motion had not
been voted on prior to the end of the Sixth term of the Legislative Yuan, it was automatically voided. The
Ministry of Transportation and Communications has requested the Executive Yuan to put forth the motion again
to the current Legislative Yuan. We cannot determine when this motion will be approved by the Legislative
Yuan. Under Republic of China law, the Statute of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd will continue in effect until the
Legislative Yuan formally approves the motion and the President of the Republic of China pronounces the
abolishment of the law.

Approval of Ministry of Transportation and Communications

While the continued application of the Statute of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. remains unclear and it may
be abolished in the near future, under that statute we are required to obtain approval of the Ministry of
Transportation and Communications for:

the adoption of and any changes to our articles ofi ncorporation and board of directors organization
rules;

any changes to our authorized capital and any issuance of our common shares;

any changes to primary tariffs for Type I services; and

any changes to operational procedures of Type I services.

Employee Subscription Rights for New Issues of Our Common Shares

In accordance with the Statute of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd., our employees have rights to subscribe for
not more than 10% of a new issuance of our common shares in accordance with subscription rules which were to
be announced by the Ministry of Transportation and Communications. However, no such rules were ever
announced. In addition, under the Republic of China Company Law, unless exempted by the relevant
government authorities, a Republic of China company must give its employees pre-emptive rights to subscribe
for between 10-15% of any new issue of shares by us.
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C. Organizational Structure

Set forth below is a diagram indicating our organization structure as of April 21, 2008.
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D. Property, Plant and Equipment

Please refer to “—B. Business Overview” for a discussion of our property, plant and equipment.

ITEM 4A.UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 5. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Overview

A number of recent and expected future developments have had, and in the future may have, a material
impact on our financial condition and results of operations. These developments include:

changes in our revenue composition and sources of revenue growth;

increased competition in the fixed line, leased line and cellular services markets, including the 3G
cellular services market;

tariff adjustments;

apital expenditures as a result of technological improvements and changes in our business;

provisions for pension payments and other stock-based compensations to our employees; and

taxation
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Each of these developments is discussed below.

Changes in our revenue composition and sources of revenue growth

Our fixed line revenues are derived primarily from the provision ofl ocal, domestic long distance and
international long distance telephone services. In addition, we also derive fixed line revenues from providing
interconnection services to other carriers. Our revenues from cellular services are principally derived from the
provision of voice services and, to a lesser extent, from SMS and other data services. Our revenues from Internet
and data services are generated principally from HiNet, our Internet service provider, from our ADSL services,
our FTTx services and from the provision of dedicated leased lines for our business customers and other
operators.

The table below sets forth the revenues from our principal lines of business as a percentage of total revenues
for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

Revenues:
Fixed line . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.9% 33.8% 31.2%
Cellular(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39.5 39.2 36.7
Internet and data(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22.8 24.9 24.5
Other(1)(2)(3)(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.8 2.1 7.6

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

(1) Beginning in 2006, we no longer combine cellular and paging services in one business segment, and we
include revenues from paging services in other. For this reason, revenues from cellular and other for 2005
have been reclassified on a comparable basis.

(2) Beginning in 2007, we no longer account for MOD revenues under other and account for MOD revenues
under data. In this table, MOD revenues are included in data for fiscal year 2007 and in other for fiscal years
2006 and 2005.

(3) Other includes revenues from our other services, which include (i) sales of cellular phones, (ii) satellite
services, (iii) telephone directories, (iv) corporate solution services and billing handling services, (v) paging
services and (vi) the leasing of real estate owned by us to third parties.

(4) As a result of our acquisition and the obtaining of board control of Senao in 2007, we began accounting for
the cellular phone sales revenues of our consolidated subsidiary, Senao, under other beginning April 12,
2007.

Over the past three years, the composition of our revenue base has undergone a change as a result of our
strategy to diversify our revenues and focus on generating increased revenues from higher growth businesses,
such as Internet and data services.

Internet and data services have been an important source of revenues over the last three years. Most of our
increased revenues have come from Internet access services. We derive Internet and data services revenues from
the provision of ADSL and FTTx access services that provides customers with data access lines and also from
the provision of our HiNet ISP services to subscribers. As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately
3.72 million total ADSL customers, which include HiNet subscribers and other customers that only use our
ADSL access services. The number of FTTx customers increased significantly in 2006 and 2007 as prices
became more affordable, coverage areas expanded and customer demand for higher bandwidth heightened. As of
December 31, 2007, we had approximately 537,000 FTTx customers, which includes HiNet subscribers and other
customers that only use our FTTx access service. A substantial portion of these customers were our former
ADSL and dial-up customers that migrated to FTTx. Increasing Internet penetration in Taiwan and higher data
traffic have contributed to a significant increase in our revenues from Internet and data services in recent years.
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Capital expenditures as a result of technological improvements and changes in our business
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Provisions for pension payments and other stock-based compensations to our employees

For the year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions of NT$, except percentages)
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The following table sets forth our personnel expenses (divided into pension and non-pension portions)
allocated by categories of operating costs and expenses.

For the year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions of NT$, except percentages)

Personnel expenses
Cost of Revenues

Pension . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.5 4.6% 1.9 4.3% 1.8 4.4%
Non-pension . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30.8 56.1 25.4 56.1 22.8 55.3

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33.3 60.7 27.3 60.4 24.6 59.7
Sales and Marketing

Pension . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.3 2.3 0.9 1.9 0.9 2.2
Non-pension . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14.4 26.2 11.9 26.4 11.2 27.2

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15.7 28.5 12.8 28.3 12.1 29.4
General and Administration

Pension . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.4 0.2 0.5
Non-pension . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.9 5.2 2.5 5.5 2.1 5.1

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.1 5.7 2.7 5.9 2.3 5.6
Research and Development

Pension . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.2 0.4 0.2 0.4 0.2 0.4
Non-pension . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.6 4.7 2.2 5.0 2.0 4.9

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.8 5.1 2.4 5.4 2.2 5.3

Total personnel expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54.9 100.0% 45.2 100.0% 41.2 100.0%

At the time of our privatization, our then existing defined benefit pension obligations were settled in full.
After completion of our privatization, our continuing employees were deemed to have commenced employment
as of the date our privatization was completed for seniority purposes under our pension plans in effect after
privatization. Under applicable Republic of China regulations, upon our privatization, the Ministry of
Transportation and Communications assumed the obligation to make annuity payments to our employees who
retired before our privatization. Under U.S. GAAP reporting, the portion of the pension obligations that was
settled by the Ministry of Transportation and Communications was represented by the difference between
accrued pension liabilities, deferred pension cost and related deferred income tax assets. Such account was
accounted for as contributed capital and recorded under our stockholders’ equity as of August 12, 2005.

As of December 31, 2006, we adopted SFAS 158 “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensions
and Other Postretirement Benefits” and recorded the under-funded status of our defined benefit pension plan as a
liability of NT$0.3 billion with a corresponding offset, net of taxes, to deferred income tax assets of NT$0.1
billion and accumulated other comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity of NT$0.2 billion.

We expect our total pension costs for the fiscal year 2008 to be approximately NT$2.9 billion.

We recognize compensation expenses when our employees purchase our common shares at discounts under
the priority share subscription program. We recognized such compensation expenses in the amounts of NT$12.8
billion, NT$0.5 billion in 2005, and 2006, respectively. No priority share subscription program was provided in
2007. The two programs are described in the following two paragraphs.

Under a program established pursuant to a regulation adopted by the Ministry of Transportation and
Communications, our employees are able to subscribe for up to approximately 476.9 million of our common
shares from the Ministry of Transportation and Communications in offerings conducted by the Ministry of
Transportation and Communications prior to our privatization. As long as our employees agree not to transfer or
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pledge these shares for either two or three years, depending on the employees’ position, they are eligible to
receive a discount of 10% or 20%, respectively, from the offering price. Pursuant to a June 2005 amendment to
the terms of this program, the majority of our employees who continued their employment with us after our
privatization are also eligible to receive a 50% discount if they agree not to transfer or pledge the shares for four
years.

At the time when we were privatized, the Ministry of Transportation and Communications implemented
another stock subscription program, allocating up to approximately 476.9 million common shares, or 4.9% of our
then outstanding common shares, for a one-time subscription by our employees. Under this program, a majority
of our employees will be eligible to receive a discount of 10%, 20% or 50% from the offering price of the shares
if they agree not to transfer or pledge these shares for two, three or four years, respectively.

As of the date of this annual report, 762,886,886 of our common shares, representing 7.9% of our
outstanding common shares were sold under the two programs mentioned above.

Taxation

The current corporate income tax rate in the Republic of China is 25%. We benefit from tax incentives
generally available to technology companies in the Republic of China, including tax credits of up to 30% of the
amount of some of our research and development, automation and employee training expenditures. We also
qualify for tax benefits at the rate of 5% to 20% of the amount of our investment in qualified equipment and
technology. As a result, our effective tax rate was 27.7%, 26.6% and 22.6% in 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively.

In 1997, the Income Tax Law of the Republic of China was amended to integrate corporate income tax and
shareholder dividend tax to eliminate the double taxation effect for resident shareholders of Taiwan companies.
Under the amendment, all retained earnings generated from January 1, 1998 and not distributed to shareholders
as dividends in the following year are assessed with a 10% retained earnings tax. See “Item 10. Additional
Information—E. Taxation—Republic of China Taxation—Dividends.” Historically, this has not had an impact on
our financial results of operations, because the majority of our earnings were distributed to the government by
way of dividends. If we decide to distribute our earnings in the future, we may need to reserve the retained
earnings tax recorded in the period during which the related income is generated.

Segment Operating Losses

Our local telephone services recorded operating losses of NT$14.2 billion, NT$13.7 billion and NT$8.6
billion (US$0.3 billion) in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. See Note 25 to our audited consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this annual report. We expect our local telephone services to continue incurring
operating losses as traffic continues to migrate from fixed line services to cellular and broadband services.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these
consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We
continually evaluate these estimates and judgments, including those related to revenue recognition, allowances
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Revenue Recognition

As of December 31

2006 2007

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
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Estimated Useful Lives of Long-Lived Assets

Investments in Unconsolidated Companies

Pension Benefits
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Accounting for Income Taxes
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Our Financial Reporting Obligations
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A. Operating Results

For the year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions)
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
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For the year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(as percentages of total revenues)
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Year ended December 31, 2006 compared with year ended December 31, 2007

Revenues

Fixed line services

Local telephone services.

Domestic long distance telephone services.

International long distance telephone services.

Cellular services

Internet and data services
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Internet services.

Data services.

Other

Operating Costs and Expenses

Cost of revenues
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Marketing

General and administrative

Research and development

Depreciation and amortization
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Operating Costs and Expenses by Business Segment

Local

Domestic
Long

Distance

International
Long

Distance
Cellular
Service

Internet
and

Data(1) Other(1)(2)(3) Total

(in billions of NT$)

As of and for the year ended December 31,
2007

Operating costs and expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31.2 1.4 7.8 18.3 16.8 18.8 94.3
Unallocated corporate expenses 4.4..........

7.89...sesnepxednastsocgnitarepolatoT

Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16.4 0.6 0.4 8.7 12.7 0.5 39.3
Unallocated corporate expenses 1.0..........

4.93...noitazitromadnanoitaicerpedlatoT

As of and for the year ended December 31,
2006

Operating costs and expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34.7 1.2 7.0 23.1 15.8 3.3 85.1
Unallocated corporate expenses 3.4..........

4.98...sesnepxednastsocgnitarepolatoT

Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18.0 0.7 0.5 8.2 12.4 0.8 40.6
Unallocated corporate expenses 1.0..........

7.04...noitazitromadnanoitaicerpedlatoT

(1) Beginning in 2007, we no longer account for MOD costs under other and account for MOD costs under
data. In this table, MOD costs are included in data for fiscal year 2007 and in other for fiscal years 2006 and
2005.

(2) Other includes operating costs and expenses from our other services, which include (i) sales of cellular
phones, (ii) satellite services, (iii) telephone directories, (iv) corporate solution services and billing handling
services, (v) paging services and (vi) the leasing of real estate owned by us to third parties.

(3) As a result of our acquisition and the obtaining of board control of Senao in 2007, we began accounting for
the cellular phone sales costs of our consolidated subsidiary, Senao, under other beginning April 12, 2007

Local telephone services

Our local telephone operating costs and expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization, decreased by
10.1% from NT$34.7 billion in 2006 to NT$31.2 billion (US$1.0 billion) in 2007, primarily due to a NT$3.5
billion decrease in personnel expense resulting from the reorganization of our call centers and termination of a
small number of employees, and offset by a NT$0.1 billion increase in uncollectible bills from our customers.
Our depreciation and amortization expenses relating to local telephone services decreased by 8.9% from
NT$18.0 billion in 2006 to NT$16.4 billion (US$0.5 billion) in 2007. The decrease was primarily due to a
decrease in depreciation expenses reflecting reduced capital expenditures.

Domestic long distance telephone services

Our domestic long distance telephone operating costs and expenses, excluding depreciation and
amortization, increased by 16.7 % from NT$1.2 billion in 2006 to NT$1.4 billion (US$43 million) in 2007,
primarily due to an increase of NT$0.2 billion in connection fees, which was partially offset by a NT$ 0.1 billion
decrease in personnel expenses resulting from a decrease in the number of employees. Our depreciation and
amortization expenses relating to domestic long distance telephone services decreased by 14.3% from NT$0.7
billion in 2006 to NT$0.6 billion (US$2 million) in 2007.
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International long distance telephone services

Our international long distance telephone operating costs and expenses, excluding depreciation and
amortization, increased by 11.4 % from NT$7.0 billion in 2006 to NT$7.8 billion (US$0.2 billion) in 2007. The
increase was primarily due to an increase of NT$0.9 billion in international settlement fees, which was partially
offset by a NT$ 0.2 billion decrease in personnel expenses resulting from a decrease in the number of employees.
Our depreciation and amortization expenses relating to international long distance telephone services decreased
by 20.0% from NT$0.5 billion in 2006 to NT$0.4 billion (US$12 million) in 2007. The decrease in depreciation
and amortization expenses was mainly due to a slowdown in capital expenditure.

Cellular services

Our cellular operating costs and expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization, decreased by 20.7%
from NT$23.1 billion in 2006 to NT$18.3 billion (US$0.6 billion) in 2007. This decrease was primarily due to a
decrease in marketing expenses, primarily cellular phone incentives paid to Senao, resulting from the acquisition
of Senao. Our depreciation and amortization expenses relating to cellular services increased by 6.1% from
NT$8.2 billion in 2006 to NT$8.7 billion (US$0.3 billion) in 2007.

Internet and data services

Our Internet and data operating costs and expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization, increased by
6.3 % from NT$15.8 billion in 2006 to NT$16.8 billion (US$0.5 billion) in 2007. This increase was primarily
due to a NT$1.8 billion increase in MOD-related expenses, which was partially offset by a NT$0.6 billion
decrease in personnel expenses resulting from a decrease in the number of employees. Our depreciation and
amortization expenses relating to Internet and data services increased slightly by 2.4% from NT$12.4 billion in
2006 to NT$12.7 billion in 2007.

Other

Our expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization, in other service increased by 489.5% from NT$3.3
billion in 2006 to NT$18.8 billion (US$0.6 billion) in 2007. This increase was primarily due to our consolidation
of the results of operations of our new subsidiary, Senao, beginning April 12, 2007. Senao’s operating costs and
expenses totaled NT$13.0 billion in 2007.

Operating Income and Operating Margin

As a result of the foregoing, our operating income increased by 11.5% from NT$56.3 billion in 2006 to
NT$62.8 billion (US$1.9 billion) in 2007. Our operating margin increased from 30.2% in 2006 to 31.3% in 2007.
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding our operating income by business segment for
the periods indicated.

Local

Domestic
Long

Distance

International
Long

Distance
Cellular
Service

Internet
and

Data(1) Other(1)(2)(3) Total

(in billions of NT$)

As of and for the year ended December 31,
2007

Income from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.8 6.3 2.7 37.6 20.4 (1.4) 67.4
Elimination ofi ntersegment income . . . . . . . . . . (10.4) 0.9 3.4 9.2 (0.7) (2.5) (0.1)

(8.6) 7.2 6.1 46.8 19.7 (3.9) 67.3

Unallocated corporate expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4.5)

Total income from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62.8

As of and for the year ended December 31,
2006

Income from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.5 7.1 2.9 30.2 20.6 (0.5) 60.8
Elimination ofi ntersegment income . . . . . . . . . . (14.1) 0.9 3.6 11.5 (2.5) 0.6 0

(13.6) 8.0 6.5 41.7 18.1 (0.1) 60.8

Unallocated corporate expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4.5)

Total income from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56.3

(1) Beginning in 2007, we no longer account for MOD revenues under other and account for MOD revenues
under data. In this table, MOD revenues are included in data for fiscal year 2007 and in other for fiscal year
2006.

(2) Other includes revenues from our other services, which include (i) sales of cellular phones, (ii) satellite
services, (iii) telephone directories, (iv) corporate solution services and billing handling services, (v) paging
services and (vi) the leasing of real estate owned by us to third parties.

(3) As a result of our acquisition and the obtaining board control of Senao in 2007, we began accounting for the
cellular phone sales revenues of our consolidated subsidiary, Senao, under other beginning April 12, 2007

As a result of the foregoing, in 2006 compared to 2007: operating loss for our local telephone services
decreased by 36.8 % from NT$13.6 billion to NT$8.6 billion (US$0.3 billion); operating income for our
domestic long distance telephone services decreased by 10.0 % from NT$8.0 billion to NT$7.2 billion (US$0.2
billion); operating income for our international long distance telephone services decreased by 6.2 % from NT$6.5
billion to NT$6.1 billion (US$0.2 billion); operating income for our cellular services increased by 12.2% from
NT$41.7 billion to NT$46.8 billion (US$1.4 billion); and operating income for our Internet and data services
increased by 8.8% from NT$18.1 billion to NT$19.7 billion (US$0.6 billion).

Our management evaluates our business segments taking into account internal and inter-segment costs and
revenues. All of our business lines, particularly local telephone, domestic long distance telephone and
international long distance telephone services, operate as an integrated business unit. Therefore, we have shown
the inter-segment income in the above table.

Other Income, Net

Our other income, net increased by 36.4% from NT$1.1 billion in 2006 to NT$1.5 billion (US$0.1 billion)
in 2007. This increase was primarily due to an increase of NT$0.6 billion in net interest income and a decrease of
NT$0.7 billion in other expenses (such as foreign exchange loss), which was offset by an increase of NT$0.8
billion in realized and unrealized loss on derivative financial instruments
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Income Tax

Our income tax was NT$15.3 billion in 2006, compared to NT$14.5 billion (US$0.5 billion) in 2007. Our
effective tax rate was 26.6% in 2006 and 22.6% in 2007.

Net Income

As a result of the foregoing, our net income increased by 17.3% from NT$42.1 billion in 2006 to NT$49.5
billion (US$1.5 billion) in 2007. Our net margin was 22.6% in 2006 and 24.6% in 2007.

Year ended December 31, 2005 compared with year ended December 31, 2006

Revenues

Our revenues increased by 0.9% from NT$184.7 million in 2005 to NT$186.3 billion (US$5.7 billion) in
2006. This increase was primarily due to an increase in operating revenues of Internet and data services.

Fixed line services

Fixed line revenues comprised 35.9% and 33.8% of our revenues in 2005 and 2006, respectively. Our fixed
line revenues decreased by 5.0% from NT$66.3 billion in 2005 to NT$62.9 billion (US$1.9 billion) in 2006.

Local telephone services. Our local telephone revenues decreased by 4.3% from NT$40.7 billion in 2005 to
NT$39.0 billion (US$1.2 billion) in 2006. This decrease was principally a result of a 12.0% decline in traffic
volume from 21.1 billion minutes in 2005 to 18.6 billion minutes in 2006. This decline in traffic volume was
primarily due to the continued migration of non-HiNet Internet customers from dial-up to broadband Internet
access, the continued traffic migration from fixed line services to broadband and cellular services, and increasing
market competition. We expect this trend to continue as broadband and cellular services become more widely
adopted in Taiwan. However, we believe the rate of traffic migration from fixed line services to broadband and
cellular services is slowing. This decline in traffic volume was partially offset by a 2.9% increase in average local
usage fees, reflecting a continued decrease in the number of customers of our discounted Internet tariff package.
Our local interconnection revenues decreased by NT$0.1 billion between these two years because of a decrease
in local interconnection volume.

Domestic long distance telephone services. Our domestic long distance telephone revenues decreased by
9.7% from NT$11.0 billion in 2005 to NT$9.9 billion (US$303 million) in 2006. This decrease was mainly due
to a decrease in traffic volume from 5.1 billion minutes in 2005 to 4.6 billion minutes in 2006. The decrease in
traffic volume was primarily due to the continued traffic migration from fixed line services to cellular services
and increased competition from other fixed line operators and VoIP. The rate of migration from fixed line
services to cellular services has been slowing in the past two years as the cellular market becomes increasingly
saturated. Our interconnection revenues also decreased as a result of more direct connections between private
operators.

International long distance telephone services. Our international long distance telephone revenues
decreased by 3.7% from NT$14.6 billion in 2005 to NT$14.0 billion (US$431 million) in 2006. This decrease
was mainly due to intense market competition and a decrease in the average per minute usage charge due to
promotional packages to encourage usage. This was partially offset by an 11.7% increase in outgoing traffic
volume from 2005 to 2006. Our international settlement revenues decreased by 8.1% from NT$3.3 billion in
2005 to NT$3.1 billion (US$94 million) in 2006. This decrease was primarily due to the continued decline in
international settlement rates
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Cellular services

Internet and data services

Internet services.

Data services.

Other

Operating Costs and Expenses
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Cost of revenues

Marketing

General and administrative

Research and development

Depreciation and amortization
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Operating Costs and Expenses by Business Segment

Local

Domestic
Long

Distance

International
Long

Distance
Cellular
Service(1)

Internet
and
Data Other(1)(2) Total

(in billions of NT$)

As of and for the year ended December 31,
2006

Operating costs and expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34.7 1.2 7.0 23.1 15.8 3.3 85.1
Unallocated corporate expenses 3.4..........

Total operating costs and expenses . . . . 89.4

Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18.0 0.7 0.5 8.2 12.4 0.8 40.6
Unallocated corporate expenses 1.0..........

7.04...noitazitromadnanoitaicerpedlatoT

As of and for the year ended December 31,
2005

Operating costs and expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36.0 1.5 7.6 22.8 22.4 3.2 93.5
Unallocated corporate expenses 9.4..........

Total operating costs and expenses . . . . 98.4

Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19.0 0.7 0.7 7.4 12.4 0.8 41.0
Unallocated corporate expenses 2.0..........

2.14...noitazitromadnanoitaicerpedlatoT

(1) Beginning in 2006, we no longer combine cellular and paging services in one business segment, and we
include costs from paging services in other. For this reason, operating costs and expenses from cellular and
other for 2005 have been reclassified on a comparable basis.

(2) Other includes operating costs and expenses from our other services, which include (i) sales of cellular
phones, (ii) satellite services, (iii) telephone directories, (iv) corporate solution services and billing handling
services, (v) paging services and (vi) the leasing of real estate owned by us to third parties.

Local telephone services

Our local telephone operating expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization, decreased by 3.5% from
NT$36.0 billion in 2005 to NT$34.7 billion (US$1.1 billion) in 2006, primarily due to a NT$4.4 billion decrease
in employees’ purchases of our common shares at discount under our employee priority share subscription
program, partially offset by a NT$1.6 billion increase in special termination benefits under our early retirement
program, a NT$1.1 billion increase in bonus for employees and remuneration for directors and supervisors and a
NT$0.6 billion increase in performance-based bonuses. Our depreciation and amortization expenses relating to
local telephone services decreased by 5.6% from NT$19.0 billion in 2005 to NT$18.0 billion (US$0.6 billion) in
2006. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in depreciation expenses because we determined that we are
able to use our related equipment for local telephone services longer than their initial expected useful life.

Domestic long distance telephone services

Our domestic long distance telephone operating expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization,
decreased by 17.8% from NT$1.5 billion in 2005 to NT$1.2 billion (US$38 million) in 2006, primarily due to a
NT$0.2 billion decrease in the employees’ purchases of our common shares at discount under our employee
priority share subscription program. Our depreciation and amortization expenses relating to domestic long
distance telephone services remained flat at NT$0.7 billion in 2005 and in 2006.
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International long distance telephone services

Cellular services

Internet and data services

Operating Income and Operating Margin
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding our operating income by business segment for
the periods indicated.

Local

Domestic
Long

Distance

International
Long

Distance
Cellular
Service

Internet
and

Data(1) Other(1)(2) Total

(in billions of NT$)

As of and for the year ended December 31,
2006

Income from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.5 7.1 2.9 30.2 20.6 (0.5) 60.8
Elimination ofi ntersegment income . . . . . . . . . . . (14.1) 0.9 3.6 11.5 (2.5) 0.6 0

(13.6) 8.0 6.5 41.7 18.1 (0.1) 60.8

Unallocated corporate expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4.5)
Total income from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56.3
As of and for the year ended December 31,

2005
Income from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.9) 7.7 3.1 30.2 11.4 (1.3) 50.2
Elimination ofi ntersegment income . . . . . . . . . . . (13.3) 1.0 3.2 12.6 (4.0) 0.5 0

(14.2) 8.7 6.3 42.8 7.4 (0.8) 50.2

Unallocated corporate expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5.1)
Total income from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45.1

(1) Beginning in 2006, we no longer combine cellular and paging services in one business segment, and we
include revenues from paging services in other. For this reason, revenues from cellular and other for 2005
have been reclassified on a comparable basis.

(2) Other includes revenues from our other services, which include (i) sales of cellular phones, (ii) satellite
services, (iii) telephone directories, (iv) corporate solution services and billing handling services, (v) paging
services and (vi) the leasing of real estate owned by us to third parties.

As a result of the foregoing, in 2005 compared to 2006 operating loss for our local telephone services
decreased by 4% from NT$14.2 billion to NT$13.6 billion (US$0.4 billion); operating income for our domestic
long distance telephone services decreased by 8.4% from NT$8.7 billion to NT$8.0 billion (US$0.2 billion);
operating income for our international long distance telephone services increased by 3.4% from NT$6.3 billion to
NT$6.5 billion (US$0.2 billion); operating income for our cellular services decreased by 2.7% from NT$42.8
billion to NT$41.7 billion (US$1.3 billion); and operating income for our Internet and data services increased by
145% from NT$7.4 billion to NT$18.1 billion (US$0.6 billion).

Our management evaluates our business segments taking into account internal and inter-segment costs and
revenues. All of our business lines, particularly local telephone, domestic long distance telephone and
international long distance telephone services, operate as an integrated business unit. Therefore, we have shown
the inter-segment income in the above table.

Other Income, Net

Our other income, net increased by 22.2% from NT$0.9 billion in 2005 to NT$1.1 billion (US$32 million)
in 2006. This increase was primarily due to (i) a NT$0.7 billion impairment loss on our long-term investment in
the Taipei 101 building we recorded in 2005, (ii) a NT$0.4 billion increase in interest income, and (iii) a total
NT$0.9 billion decrease in rental income, foreign exchange gains and others included in other income combined.

Income Tax

Our income tax was NT$12.7 billion in 2005, compared to NT$15.3 billion (US$469 million) in 2006. Our
effective tax rate was 27 7% in 2005 and 26 6% in 2006
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Net Income

As a result of the foregoing, our net income increased by 26.3% from NT$33.3 billion in 2005 to NT$42.1
billion (US$1.3 billion) in 2006. Our net margin was 18.0% in 2005 and 22.6% in 2006.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

The following table sets forth the summary of our cash flows for the periods indicated:

For the year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(in billions)
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$

Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 86.2 100.1 87.2 2.7
Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (28.0) (19.1) (39.4) (1.2)
Net cash used in financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (45.6) (52.2) (42.8) (1.3)
Cash balance from subsidiaries upon consolidation and deconsolidation . . . . . — — 0.5 —
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12.6 28.8 5.5 0.2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41.9 70.7 76.2 2.4

Our primary source ofl iquidity is cash flow from operations, which represents operating profit adjusted for
non-cash items, primarily depreciation and amortization and changes in current assets and liabilities. We believe
that our working capital is sufficient for our present requirements.

In 2007, our net cash provided by operating activities totaled NT$87.2 billion (US$2.7 billion), compared
with NT$100.1 billion in 2006. This decrease was primarily due to a decrease of NT$12.5 billion in income tax
payable. In 2006, our net cash provided by operating activities totaled NT$100.1 billion, compared with NT$86.2
billion in 2005. This increase was due to an increase of NT$15.5 billion in income tax payable and an increase of
NT$8.8 billion in net income offset by a decrease of NT$12.3 billion in share-based compensation.

Historically, net cash provided by operating activities has been sufficient to cover our capital expenditures,
including the ongoing expansion and modernization of our networks. Our net cash used in investing activities
increased from NT$19.1 billion in 2006 to NT$39.4 billion (US$1.2 billion) in 2007, principally as a result of an
increase of NT$18.5 billion in acquisitions of available-for-sale securities consisting mostly ofi nvestments in
open-ended mutual funds. Our net cash used in investing activities decreased from NT$28.0 billion in 2005 to
NT$19.1 billion in 2006, principally as a result of proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale securities of
NT$12.0 billion in 2006 offset in part by NT$4.8 billion increase in acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

In 2007, our net cash used in financing activities totaled NT$42.8 billion (US$1.3 billion), which mainly
reflected NT$34.6 billion of payment of dividends and NT$7.2 billion of purchase of treasury stock during that
period. In 2006, our net cash used in financing activities totaled NT$52.2 billion, which reflected NT$40.7 billion
of payment of dividends and NT$11.4 billion of purchase of treasury stock during that period. In 2005, our net
cash used in financing activities totaled NT$45.6 billion, which reflected NT$45.3 billion of payment of
dividends during that period.

Capital Resources

We have historically financed our capital expenditure requirements with our cash flows from operations.

In future years, we expect to have capital expenditure requirements for the ongoing expansion and upgrade
of our networks combined with anticipated outlays for the introduction of new services, including our 3G cellular
services. We also expect to make dividend payments on an ongoing basis. See “Item 8. Financial Information—
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Capital Expenditures

The following table sets forth a summary of our capital expenditures for the periods indicated.

For the year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

(NT$ in millions, except percentages)

Capital Expenditures
Wireline equipment(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,857 77.9% 17,898 64.7% 19,191 76.6%
Cellular equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,449 19.4 9,405 34.0 5,340 21.3
Others . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 624 2.7 377 1.3 537 2.1

Total capital expenditures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,930 100.0% 27,680 100.0% 25,068 100.0%

(1) Wireline equipment used to provide fixed line services and Internet and data services. Some wireline
equipment is jointly used by fixed line and data and Internet services.

The following table sets forth a summary of our planned capital expenditures for the year ending
December 31, 2008.

For the year ending
December 31, 2008

(in millions of NT$, except percentages)

Capital Expenditures
Wireline equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,148 71.0%
Cellular equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,101 18.7
Others . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,345 10.3

Total capital expenditures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,594 100.0%

We expect our total capital expenditures to be approximately NT$32.6 billion in 2008. In future periods, we
expect our total capital expenditures to rise due to the launch of new businesses, Internet protocol next generation
network migration and 3G cellular network expansion. We expect to finance these capital expenditures with our
cash flows from operations.

Inflation/Deflation

We do not believe that deflation or inflation in Taiwan has had a material impact on our results of
operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” to define fair value,
establish a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, and expand disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 will be
effective for consolidated financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, the
beginning our 2008 fiscal year. We are assessing the impact the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on our
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (SFAS 159). Under this standard, we may elect to report financial instruments and certain
other items at fair value on a contract-by-contract basis with changes in value reported in earnings. This election
is irrevocable. SFAS 159 provides an opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings that is caused by
measuring hedged assets and liabilities that were previously required to use a different accounting method than
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C. Research, Development, Patents and Licenses, Etc.

Research and Development







88

We have developed a number of advanced network services, operation technologies and applications and
value-added services, including our ADSL deployment, Internet-based call center, e-commerce platform, global
standard for mobile communications billing system, a new telecommunications operation service system for all
business units of our company, government public key infrastructure, a leased line testing and monitoring system
and an intelligent transportation system. As of March 31, 2008, we have been granted 295 domestic patents and
39 foreign patents.

D. Trend Information

See “—Overview” for a discussion of the most significant recent trends that have had, and in the future may
have, a material impact on our results of operations, financial condition and capital expenditures. In addition, see
discussions included in this Item for a discussion of known trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or
events that we believe are reasonably likely to have a material effect on our net operating revenues, income from
continuing operations, profitability, liquidity or capital resources, or that would cause reported financial
information not necessarily to be indicative of future operating results or financial condition.

E. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We entered into forward exchange contracts and index future contracts and currency options to reduce our
exposure to foreign currency risk and variability in operating results due to fluctuations in exchange rates and in
stock prices for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007. Net losses arising from derivative financial
instruments for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 were NT$52 million (including realized settlement
losses of NT$32 million and valuation losses of NT$20 million) and NT$856 million (including realized
settlement losses of NT$271 million and valuation losses of NT$585 million), respectively.

Specifically, in September 2007, we entered into a ten-year foreign currency derivative contract with
Goldman Sachs Group Inc., or Goldman, in order to hedge foreign currency fluctuation risks caused by capital
expenditure payments and international call settlement fees which are primary denominated in U.S. dollars. In
accordance with the terms of the contract, we deposited US$3.0 million with Goldman, which is included in
other current assets. Under the terms of the contract, if the spot exchange rate of NT dollars against U.S. dollars
is less than NT$31.50 per US$1.00 at any two consecutive bi-weekly valuation dates during the valuation period
starting from October 4, 2007 to September 5, 2017, we are required to make a cash payment to Goldman. The
amount of payment is determined by the difference between the applicable exchange rates and using a base
amount of US$4.0 million. Conversely, if the spot exchange rate of NT dollars against U.S. dollars is above
NT$31.50 per US$1.00 using the same valuation methodology, Goldman would have a payment obligation in an
amount determined using a base amount of U$2.0 million. Further, if the spot exchange rate is at or above
NT$32.70 per US$1.00 after December 12, 2007 at any time, the contract will be terminated at that time. The
amount of unrealized valuation loss arising from this contract for the year ended December 31, 2007 was
NT$580 million (included in “realized and unrealized loss on derivative financial instruments”). See Note 24 to
our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report.

F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

Set forth below are our total contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007.

Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 After 2011

Contractual Obligations(1)

Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — —
Operating leases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.8 1.4 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.2
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.8 1.4 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.2

(1) Accrued pension liabilities of NT$3.9 billion, as of December 31, 2007, have not been included in the table
above
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G. Foreign Exchange

ITEM 6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

A. Directors and Senior Management

Name Age Position Tenure with us
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Tan Ho Chen

Shyue-Ching Lu

Oliver F.L. Yu

Yu-Huei Jea

Jeng-Tsuen Liaw

Chao-I Hsieh

Yu Cheng

Chiu-Kuei Huang

Lo-Ming Chung
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An Jye Huang

Jing-Twen Chen

Zse-Hong Tsai

Shu Yeh

Hsu-Chung Simon Chang

Judy Fu-Meei Ju

Yu-Hsien Lin

Yeong-Chwan Hwang

Yung An Yen

Joseph C.P. Shieh

Shaio-Tung Chang
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John C.C. Hsueh

Jung-Ho Lee

Tsung-Yen Chang

Minsky Luo

Tzu-Han Huang

Chi-Mau Sheih

Jen-Hon Lin

Shyang-Yih Chen
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Yen-Sung Lee is an Executive Vice President and Manager of our Industrial Customer Group of our
company. Mr. Lee was an Executive Vice President Manager of the Data Communications Business Group of
our company from January 2002 to April 2005 and was the President of the Telecom Laboratories from April
2005 to February 2007. Mr. Lee holds a Ph. D. degree in information engineering from National Chiao Tung
University.

Tai-Feng Leng is an Executive Vice President of our company and a manager of our International Business
Group. Miss Leng served as Vice President of our International Business Group from July 2004 to December
2007 and as Senior Managing Director of the Marketing Department from October 2001 to July 2004. Miss Leng
holds a Master’s degree in management science from the National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan.

B. Compensation

The compensation plan for our directors and supervisors, approved at our annual general shareholders’
meeting in 2006, stipulates that:

the chairman of our board of directors may receive a fixed monthly income of NT$330,000 and a
non-fixed income, including but not limited to performance-related bonuses or other rewards, which
may not exceed his fixed income. The chairman will not receive any additional compensation for his
role as a director;

independent directors who concurrently serve in military, public office or hold teaching or
administrative post may receive a fixed monthly compensation of NT$8,000, and those who do not
concurrently serve in military or public office or hold teaching or administrative post may receive a
monthly compensation of NT$50,000;

directors and supervisors who serve in military, public office or hold teaching or administrative post
may receive a monthly compensation of NT$8,000, and those directors and supervisors who do not
serve in military and public office or hold teaching or administrative post may receive a monthly
compensation of NT$30,000;

Furthermore, the monthly compensation for our president, approved by our board of directors meeting in
2006, is NT$300,000, and a non-fixed income, including but not limited to performance-related bonuses or other
rewards, which may not exceed his fixed income. If the president also serves as a director of the board, he will
not receive any additional compensation for his role as a director.

The compensation plan was put into practice on January 1, 2006. The aggregate amount of compensation
that we paid to our directors, supervisors and executive officers in 2006 and 2007 was NT$91,281,404 and
NT$135,506,801 respectively. The aggregate amount of compensation in 2007 includes a NT$93,123,075 salary
payment for directors, supervisors and executive officers, a NT$35,903,408 bonus for directors and supervisors
and a NT$6,480,318 bonus for executive officers and a labor union director. The 2007 bonus for our directors
and supervisors may not exceed 0.2% of our distributable earnings and must be approved at our 2008 annual
general shareholders’ meeting.
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Pursuant to new R.O.C. disclosure rules, we have disclosed the compensation ranges of our directors,
supervisors and senior management as follows.

Directors

Director Compensation Total Compensation

Below NT$2,000,000 Tan Ho Chen, Shyue-Ching Lu,
Oliver F.L. Yu, Jeng-Tsuen Liao,
Chao-I Hsieh, Yu Cheng, An Jye
Huang, Hsu-Chung Simon Chang,
Shu Yeh

Oliver F.L. Yu, Jeng-Tsuen Liao,
Chao-I Hsieh, Yu Cheng, An Jye
Huang, Shu Yeh

NT$2,000,000 to NT$4,999,999 Yu-Huei Jea, Chiu-Kuei Huang,
Lo-Ming Chung, Neng-Pai Lin,
Chien-Cheng Lin, Zse-Hong Tsai,
Jing-Twen Chen, Joyce H.Y. Jen

Hsu-Chung Simon Chang, Yu-
Huei Jea, Chiu-Kuei Huang, Lo-
Ming Chung, Neng-Pai Lin,
Chien-Cheng Lin, Zse-Hong Tsai,
Jing-Twen Chen, Joyce H.Y. Jen

uLgnihC-euyhS999,999,9$TNot000,000,5$TN

nehCoHnaT999,999,41$TNot000,000,01$TN

elpoep71elpoep71latoT

Supervisors

Total Compensation

Below NT$2,000,000 Yung An Yen

NT$2,000,000 to NT$4,999,999 Judy Fu-meei Ju, Yu-Hsien Lin, Yeong-Chwan Hwang, Ming-Daw
Chang

elpoep5latoT

Senior Management

Total Compensation

Below NT$2,000,000 Minsky Luo

NT$2,000,000 to NT$4,999,999 John C.C. Hsueh, Tsimg-Yen Chang, Joseph C.P. Shieh, Chun-Ming
Hsieh, Cheng-Lang Huang, Tai-Feng Leng, Shyang-Yih Chen

NT$5,000,000 to NT$9,999,999 Shyue-Ching Lu, Feng-Hsiung Chang, Hank Han-Chao Wang, Shaio-
Tung Chang, Chi-Mau Sheih, Yen-Sung Lee, Jen-Hon Lin

elpoep51latoT

We do not have any service contracts with any directors providing for any benefits upon termination of
employment.

C. Board Practices

Among our 14 directors, 13 were elected in June 2007 for three-year terms, which may be renewed for any
number of consecutive terms, and one was appointed by the Ministry of Transportation and Communication,
serving the current term from April 2006 to April 2009. Pursuant to the Republic of China Company Law,
however, the directors may be removed from office at any time by a resolution adopted at a shareholders’
meeting. The chairman of our board of directors is elected by our directors. Our chairman presides at all meetings
of our board of directors and also has the authority to act as our representative. We have not entered into any
contract with any of our directors and supervisors by which our directors or supervisors are expected to receive
benefits upon termination of their employment.
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http://www.cht.com.tw

D. Employees

The following section sets forth information regarding the employees of Chunghwa Telecom on a non-
consolidated basis.

2005 2006 2007

Employees
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Employee Stock Subscription Program
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E. Share Ownership

Name Number %

ITEM 7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A. Major Shareholders

As of April 20, 2005 As of April 1, 2006 As of April 1, 2007 As of April 1, 2008

Name Number % Number % Number % Number %
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B. Related Party Transactions

Related Party Transactions Policies

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Information
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Dividends
per common

share(1)
Total

dividends(1)

(NT$ in billions)

B. Significant Changes
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ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTING

A. Offer and Listing Details

Market Price Information for Our Common Shares

Our common shares have been listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since October 27, 2000. There is no
public market outside Taiwan for our common shares. The table below shows, for the periods indicated, the high
and low closing prices and the average daily volume of trading activity on the Taiwan Stock Exchange for our
common shares. The closing price for our common shares on the Taiwan Stock Exchange on April 22, 2008 was
NT$78.4 per share.

A capital reduction plan approved at the general shareholder’s meeting on June 15, 2007 was executed in
2007. The last trading date for our old shares was December 20, 2007. Trading of our shares was suspended in
the Taiwan Stock Exchange from December 21, 2007 to January 8, 2008. Trading of our new shares commenced
on January 9, 2008. The amount of the capital reduction was NT$9,667,845,090, corresponding to 966,784,509
common shares of 10,634,629,602 total listed common shares—a reduction ratio of 9.09090908835%. Every
thousand shares were converted to 909.09090991165 shares. For the fractional common shares resulting from the
capital reduction, we paid the shareholder cash based on the closing price on December 21, 2007, which was
NT$59.9, rounded off to the nearest whole NT dollar. After the capital reduction, the share price was restated in
accordance with Article 67-1 of the Operating Rules of the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.

Closing price per
common share(1)

Average daily
trading volumeHigh Low

NT$ NT$ (in thousands)

2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39.74 33.79 5,781
2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51.06 37.16 9,049
2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52.65 47.07 9,532
2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57.37 47.53 9,383

First Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52.88 47.53 11,193
Second Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53.48 50.46 7,982
Third Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52.62 49.51 7,488
Fourth Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57.37 51.79 8,930

2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70.84 56.10 11,431
First Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60.78 56.42 8,998
Second Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61.73 58.22 8,386
Third Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 68.42 56.10 14,970
Fourth Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70.84 64.35 13,317

October . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69.30 66.00 13,494
November . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70.84 64.35 14,406
December . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70.18 65.89 11,326

2008
First Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79.90 67.90 40,762

January . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71.80 67.90 31,482
February . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 78.00 67.90 36,158
March . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79.90 74.00 51,782

Second Quarter (through April 22) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79.50 75.60 23,904
April (through April 22) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79.50 75.60 23,904

(1) The historical prices and volumes of our common shares traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange have been
adjusted based on prior cash dividend payments, capital increases and capital reductions.
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Market Price Information for Our American Depositary Shares

Closing Price Per ADS(1) Average ADS
Daily Trading

VolumeHigh Low

US$ US$ (in thousands)
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B. Plan of Distribution

Not applicable.

C. Markets

The principal trading market for our common shares is the Taiwan Stock Exchange and the principal trading
market for our ADSs is the New York Stock Exchange.

D. Selling Shareholders

Not applicable.

E. Dilution

Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue

Not applicable.

ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

A. Share Capital

Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association

Objects and Purpose

The scope of business of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. as set forth in Article 2 of our articles of
incorporation, includes (i) Telecommunications Enterprise Type 1 and Type 2 businesses pursuant to the
Telecommunications Act of the Republic of China, (ii) installation of the computer equipment and radio-
frequency equipment whose operation is controlled by the telecommunication business, (iii) telecommunications
equipment wholesale, retail and engineering businesses, (iv) design, engineering and operation ofi nformation
software and hardware service businesses, (v) technique and performance arts training, (vi) tourism and hotel
business and (vii) other businesses, except any business requiring a special permit or otherwise restricted by law
or regulation.

General

Under our articles ofi ncorporation as last amended on May 30, 2006, our authorized capital was increased
to NT$120,000,000,020, divided into 12,000,000,000 common shares and two preferred shares, with par value of
NT$10 per share. Our paid-in capital is NT$95,577,769,140 divided into 9,557,776,912 common shares and two
non-transferable preferred shares. Since the preferred shares must be redeemed by the company in 2009, the
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Directors

Preferred Shares
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The holder of preferred shares, or its nominated representative, will act as our director and supervisor during
the existing period of the preferred shares. Any such representative is subject to removal and replacement by the
holder of the preferred shares from time to time.

When we issue new shares for cash, the holder of preferred shares will be entitled to the same pre-emptive
rights as holders of common shares.

Without the prior consent of the holder of preferred shares, we may not:

change our corporate name;

change our business; or

transfer the whole or the main portion of our business or property.

The holder of preferred shares may not transfer its preferred shares. We must redeem all outstanding
preferred shares at par value three years from the date of their issuance. We are required to cancel these preferred
shares immediately after their redemption.

Dividends and Distributions

At each annual general shareholders’ meeting, our board of directors submits to the shareholders for their
approval any proposal for the distribution of dividend or the making of any other distribution to shareholders
from our net income for the preceding fiscal year. All common shares outstanding and fully paid as of the
relevant record date are entitled to share equally in any dividend or other distribution so approved. Dividends
may be distributed in cash, in the form of common shares or a combination of the two, as determined by the
shareholders at the meeting.

We are not permitted to distribute dividends or make other distributions to shareholders in any year in which we
do not have any net income or retained earnings (excluding reserves). The Republic of China Company Law also
requires that 10% of our annual net income, less prior years’ losses and outstanding tax, if any, be set aside as a legal
reserve until the accumulated legal reserve equals our paid-in capital. We may also set aside special reserve as
determined by our shareholders at a shareholders’ meeting. In addition, our articles ofi ncorporation provide that at
least 50% of the remaining portion of the net income, less prior years’ losses, outstanding taxes, the legal reserve and
any special reserve, plus undistributed retained earnings from prior years will be distributed as dividends to
shareholders. Under our articles ofi ncorporation as last amended on May 30, 2006, not less than 50% of the total
amount of the distributed dividends must be in cash, but if the cash dividends to be distributed are less than NT$0.10
per share, the dividends may be distributed in the form of shares. Commencing in 2005, in which our privatization
was completed, prior to distributing any dividends to our shareholders, we were required to first distribute (i) not less
than 1% of the distributable earnings to employees as bonuses and (ii) not more than 0.2% of the distributable
earnings to directors and supervisors as compensation. Pursuant to our articles ofi ncorporation, as last amended at
our 2006 annual general shareholders’ meeting, prior to distributing any dividends to our shareholder, we must now
distribute (i) between 2% and 5% of the distributable earnings to employees as bonuses and (ii) not more than 0.2%
of the distributable earnings to directors and supervisors as compensation. Also, in accordance to an amendment to
Article 64 of the Business Accounting Law promulgated on January 24, 2007, starting from January 1, 2008,
employee bonuses are now categorized as an expense instead of as distributable earnings.

Under our articles ofi ncorporation, if we do not have current or retained earnings (excluding reserves) but
our legal reserve exceeds 50% of our paid-in capital, we may use the excess amount to distribute dividends. In
addition, under the Republic of China Company Law, if we do not incur a loss, we are also permitted to make
distributions to our shareholders of additional common shares by capitalizing reserves (including the legal
reserve, the premium derived from the issuance of new shares and the income from endowments received by us).
However, amounts payable by capitalizing our legal reserve are limited to 50% of the total accumulated legal
reserve and this capitalization can only be effected when the accumulated legal reserve exceeds 50% of our
paid-in capital.



106

Changes in Share Capital

Preemptive Rights

Meetings of Shareholders

Voting Rights
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Other Rights of Shareholders
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Register of Shareholders and Record Dates

Annual Consolidated Financial Statements

Transfer of Common Shares

Acquisition of Our Own Common Shares
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Liquidation Rights

Substantial Shareholders and Transfer Restrictions

C. Material Contracts

D. Exchange Controls

Foreign Investment and Exchange Controls in Taiwan

We have extracted from publicly available documents the information presented in this section. Please note
that citizens of the People’s Republic of China and entities organized in the People’s Republic of China are
subject to special Republic of China laws, rules and regulations, which are not discussed in this section.
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General

Foreign Investment in Taiwan Securities Market
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Foreign Investment Approval

Depositary Receipts
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Exchange Controls
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Dividends

Capital Gains

Preemptive Rights
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Securities Transaction Tax

A securities transaction tax, at the rate of 0.3% of the gross amount received, payable by the seller will be
withheld upon a sale of common shares in Taiwan. Transfers of ADSs are not subject to Republic of China
securities transaction tax. According to a letter issued by the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of China in
1996, withdrawal of common shares from the deposit facility will not be subject to Republic of China securities
transaction tax.

Estate Taxation and Gift Tax

Republic of China estate tax is payable on any property within Taiwan of a deceased person who is a
non-resident individual, and Republic of China gift tax is payable on any property within Taiwan donated by any
such person. According to the tax ruling dated December 27, 2006, from January 1, 2007, estate tax is payable at
rates ranging from 2% of the first NT$670,000 to 50% of amounts over NT$111,132,000, and gift tax is payable
at rates ranging from 4% of the first NT$670,000 to 50% of amounts over NT$50,090,000. Under Republic of
China estate and gift tax laws, common shares issued by Taiwan companies are deemed located in Taiwan
regardless of the location of the owner. It is not clear whether the ADSs will be regarded as property located in
Taiwan under Republic of China estate and gift tax laws.

Tax Treaty

The Republic of China does not have an income tax treaty with the United States. On the other hand, the
Republic of China has income tax treaties with Indonesia, Singapore, South Africa, Australia, Vietnam, New
Zealand, Malaysia, Macedonia, Swaziland, the Netherlands, United Kingdom, Gambia, Senegal, Sweden,
Belgium and Denmark, which may limit the rate of Republic of China withholding tax on dividends paid with
respect to common shares in Taiwan companies. It is unclear whether if you hold ADSs, you will be considered
to hold common shares for the purposes of these treaties. Accordingly, if you may otherwise be entitled to the
benefits of the relevant income tax treaty, you should consult your tax advisors concerning your eligibility for the
benefits with respect to the ADSs.

Retained Earnings Tax

Under the Republic of China Income Tax Laws, a 10% retained earnings tax will be imposed on a company
for its after-tax earnings generated after January 1, 1998 which are not distributed in the following year. The
retained earnings tax so paid will further reduce the retained earnings available for future distribution. When the
company declares dividends out of those retained earnings, up to a maximum amount of 10% of the declared
dividends will be credited against the 20% withholding tax imposed on the non-resident holders ofi ts shares.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations for U.S. Persons

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the ownership and
disposition of our shares and ADSs as of the date hereof. The discussion set forth below is applicable to
beneficial owners of our shares or ADSs that hold the shares or ADSs as capital assets and that are U.S. holders
and non-residents of the Republic of China. You are a U.S. holder if you are:

n individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States;

corporation or other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes created or
organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia;

n estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless ofi ts source;

trust that is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and the control of
one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust; or

trust that has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a
U.S. person.
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You should consult your own tax advisor concerning the particular U.S. federal income tax
consequences to you of the ownership and disposition of the shares or ADSs, as well as the consequences to
you arising under the laws of any other taxing jurisdiction.
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Taxation of Dividends
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Taxation of Capital Gains

Passive Foreign Investment Company
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Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

F. Dividends and Paying Agents

G. Statement by Experts

H. Documents on Display
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I. Subsidiary Information

ITEM 11. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

Foreign Currency Risk
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September 2007 U.S. Dollar Derivative Contract

In September 2007, we entered into a foreign currency derivative contract with Goldman for the purchase of
U.S. dollars every two weeks over a ten year period. The following table below provides information about this
derivative.

Term of Contract 10 Years with settlement occurring every two weeks

Trading terms for each settlement date . . . . . If NT$/US$�31.50, we buy US$2.0 million at NT$30.00 per
US$1.00 at each settlement date; or
if NT$/US$ < 31.50, we buy US$4.0 million at NT$31.50 per
US$1.00 at each settlement date.
260 total settlements, with first settlement on October 4, 2007.

Cancellation event (or knock-out event) . . . . Starting from and including December 12, 2007, if the spot
exchange rate of NT dollars against U.S. dollars ever trades at or
above NT$32.70 per US$1.00, the knock-out event occurs and all
remaining settlements for the remainder of the contract will be
cancelled.

Collateral deposit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . We deposit US$3.0 million with Goldman as principal, and
Goldman offers annual interest rate of 8% on this deposit.

As the amount of unrealized valuation loss (mark-to-market) fluctuates depending on the spot price,
volatility of exchange rate, interest rate spread, strike price and the residual tenure of the contract, there is no
direct relationship between the amount of unrealized valuation loss and cash flow. For the year ended December
31, 2007, the amount of unrealized valuation loss arising from this contract was NT$580 million. As of March
31, 2008, the spot exchange rate was NT$30.41 per US$1.00, and our unrealized valuation loss for this contract
was NT$3.08 billion. The following table sets forth a sensitivity analysis by showing the amount that our
unrealized valuation loss for this contract would have been as of March 31, 2008 if the spot exchange rate for NT
dollars per US dollar were at the stated rates on that date.

NT$/US$ Spot Exchange Rate 27.5 28.0 28.5 29.0 29.5 30.0 30.5 31.0 31.5 32.0 32.5 32.7(1)

Estimated mark-to-market
unrealized loss (US$ in
millions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (253.8) (222.3) (212.4) (166.9) (142.4) (119.4) (96.8) (72.9) (54.0) (25.4) (10.6) —

Estimated mark-to-market
unrealized loss (NT$ in
billions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6.98) (6.22) (6.05) (4.84) (4.20) (3.58) (2.95) (2.26) (1.70) (0.81) (0.35) —

(1) If the spot exchange rate of NT dollars against U.S. dollars is ever at or above NT$32.70, the knock-out
event occurs and all remaining settlements under the contract will be cancelled.
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NT$/US$ Spot Exchange Rate 27.5 28.0 28.5 29.0 29.5 30.0 30.5 31.0 31.5 32.0 32.5 32.7(1)

Equity Price Risk

ITEM 12. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITY SECURITIES
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PART II

ITEM 13. DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES

ITEM 14. MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HOLDERS AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

ITEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.
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Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

ITEM 16A. AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

ITEM 16B. CODE OF ETHICS

ITEM 16C. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

For the year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
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ITEM 16D. EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES

ITEM 16E. PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED
PURCHASERS

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period

(a) Total
Number of

Shares
Purchased

(b) Average
Price Paid
per Share

(c) Total Number of
Shares Purchased as

Part of Publicly
Announced Plans or

Programs

(d) Maximum Number
(or Approximate
Dollar Value) of

Shares that May Yet
Be Purchased Under

the Plans or Programs
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PART III

ITEM 17. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Registrant has elected to provide the consolidated financial statements and related information specified
in Item 18 in lieu of Item 17.

ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is a list of the audited consolidated financial statements and report ofi ndependent registered
public accounting firm included in this annual report beginning on page F-1.

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page

1-F.dtL,.oCmoceleTawhgnuhCfostnemetatSlaicnaniFdetadilosnoC
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31,

2005, 2006 and 2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2005,

2006 and 2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 . . . . . . . . . F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-10

ITEM 19. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibits

1.1 Statute of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. as last amended on November 29, 2000 (English translation)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-31731) filed with the Commission on May 17,
2004).

1.2 Articles ofi ncorporation of the Company as last amended on May 30, 2006 (English Translation).

2.1 Form of Amended and Restated Deposit Agreement dated as of November 2007 among Chunghwa
Telecom Co. Ltd., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as depositary, and all holders from time to time of
ADRs issued thereunder, including the Form of American Depositary Receipt (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit (a) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form F-6 (File No. 333-
147321) filed with the Commission on November 13, 2007).

8.1* List of Subsidiaries.

11.1 Code of Ethics (English translation), as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11.1 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (File No.
001-31731) filed with the Commission on May 26, 2006).

12.1* Certification of our Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

12.2* Certification of our Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

13.1* Certification of our Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

13.2* Certification of our Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

* Filed herewith.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in Millions, Except Shares and Par Value Data)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

December 31
Notes 2006 2007

NT$ NT$ US$
(Note 3)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2,4,24 $ 70,673 $ 76,233 $ 2,351
Short-term investments 2,5,24 6,951 18,809 580
Trade notes and accounts receivable, net 2,6,20 12,630 11,456 353
Inventories 2,7 2,183 4,303 133
Prepaid expenses  907 985 30
Deferred income taxes 2,19 1,271 1,432 44
Other current assets 24 6,287 7,729 238

Total current assets 100,902 120,947 3,729
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 2,8,24 3,546 4,623 143
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET 2,10,20 277,426 265,183 8,177
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

3G concession, net 2 8,983 8,235 254
Patents and computer software, net 2 210 338 10
Goodwill 2 73 211 7
Other 2 — 160 5

Total intangible assets 9,266 8,944 276
OTHER ASSETS

Deferred income taxes, non-current 2,19 3,457 2,957 92
Other 18,21,24 4,184 3,580 110

Total other assets 7,641 6,537 202
TOTAL $398,781 $406,234 $ 12,527

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term loans 12,24 $ 126 $ 36 $ 1
Trade notes and accounts payable 20 9,906 11,598  358
Income tax payable 2,19 12,469 11,598 358
Accrued expenses 11,20 19,937 16,585 511
Current portion of deferred income 2 8,354 9,037 279
Current portion of long-term loans 14,24 323 20 1
Customers’ deposits 24 6,654 6,386 197
Due to stockholders for capital reduction 15 — 9,558 294
Other current liabilities 12,20 9,344 9,664 298

Total current liabilities 67,113 74,482 2,297
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Deferred income, net of current portion 2 9,350 6,578 203
Accrued pension liabilities 2,18 1,612 3,903 120
Other  561 733 23

Total long-term liabilities 11,523 11,214 346
Total liabilities 78,636 85,696 2,643

MINORITY INTEREST 98 2,655 82
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 21,23
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 15

Capital stock–NT$10 (US$0.3) par value
Authorized–12,000,000,000 common shares
Issued and outstanding–9,667,845,093 common shares 96,678 96,678 2,981

Additional paid-in capital 164,330 154,678 4,770
Retained earnings 58,727 73,567 2,268
Other comprehensive income 312 67 2
Treasury stock–110,068,181 common shares 16 — (7,107) (219)
Total stockholders’ equity 320,047 317,883 9,802

TOTAL $398,781 $406,234 $ 12,527
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in Millions, Except Shares and Per Share and Per ADS Data)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31
Notes 2005 2006 2007

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(Note 3)

REVENUES 20 $ 184,696 $ 186,342 $ 200,911 $ 6,195
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES 2

Cost of revenues, excluding depreciation and
amortization 2,20 68,073 62,606 71,237 2,197

Marketing, excluding depreciation and amortization 23,650 20,651 21,788 671
General and administrative, excluding depreciation and

amortization 3,505 3,314 3,125 97
Research and development, excluding depreciation and

amortization 3,144 2,824 2,586 80
Depreciation and amortization—cost of revenues 38,800 38,353 37,056 1,143
Depreciation and amortization—operating expenses 2,363 2,297 2,305 71

Total operating costs and expenses 139,535 130,045 138,097 4,259
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 45,161 56,297 62,814 1,936
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

Interest income  452 804 1,453 45
Interest expense (2) (6) (15) —
Realized and unrealized loss on derivative financial

instruments — (52) (856)  (26)
Impairment loss on long-term investments (740) — (22) (1)
Other income (expenses), net 1,161 297 959 29

Total other income 871 1,043 1,519 47
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX AND MINORITY

INTEREST 46,032 57,340 64,333 1,983

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 2,19 12,733 15,281 14,543 448
INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST 33,299 42,059 49,790 1,535

MINORITY INTEREST — (13) 339 10
NET INCOME $ 33,299 $ 42,072 $ 49,451 $ 1,525

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 2 $ 3.39 $ 4.34 $ 5.13 $ 0.16

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE $ — $ — $ 5.13 $ 0.16

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING 9,836,839,398 9,686,928,910 9,637,205,704 9,637,205,704

NET INCOME PER PRO FORMA EQUIVALENT ADS 2
Basic $ 33.85 $ 43.43 $ 51.31 $ 1.58

Diluted $ — $ — $ 51.30 $ 1.58

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE NUMBER OF PRO FORMA
EQUIVALENT ADSs OUTSTANDING 983,683,940 968,692,891 963,720,570 963,720,570

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net income 2 $ 33,299 $ 42,072 $ 49,451 $ 1,525
Cumulative translation adjustments 2 — 1 —
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities held by

investees — — 2 —
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 2,6 — 541 (505)  (15)
Defined benefit pension plan adjustment — — 257 8
Comprehensive income $ 33,301 $ 42,613 $ 49,206 $ 1,518
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Amounts in Millions, Except Shares Data)

Capital Stock
Additional

Paid-in
Capital

Retained Earnings Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Treasury
Stock

Total
Stockholders’

Equity
Common

Shares Amount
Legal

Reserve
Special
Reserve

Unappropriated
Earnings Total

NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,

2004 (IN NT$) 9,647,724,900 $ 96,477 $ 136,362 $ 34,287 $ 2,676 $ 48,946 $ 85,909 $ (5) $ — $ 318,743
Additional capital

contributed by
government — — 6 — — — — — — 6

Additional capital
contributed by the
MOTC through selling
shares to employees at
a discounted price — — 12,770 — — — — — — 12,770

Additional capital
contributed by
MOTC–pension — — 8,352 — — — — — — 8,352

Appropriations and
distributions of 2004
earnings:

Legal reserve — — — 4,986 — (4,986) — — — —
Special reserve — — — — 4 (4) — — — —
Cash dividends—

NT$4.7 per
share — — — — — (45,344) (45,344) — — (45,344)

Net income — — — — — 33,299 33,299 — — 33,299
Cumulative translation

adjustment for foreign-
currency investments
in unconsolidated
companies — — — — — — — 2 — 2

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,
2005 (IN NT$) 9,647,724,900 96,477 157,490 39,273 2,680 31,911 73,864 (3) — 327,828

Additional capital
contributed by the
MOTC through selling
shares to employees at
a discounted price
(Note 17) — — 503 — — — — — — 503

Employee stock bonus
(Note 16) 23,005,695 230 1,151 — — — — — — 1,381

Appropriations and
distributions of 2005
earnings:

Legal reserve — — — 4,765 — (4,765) — — — —
Cash dividends—

NT$4.3 per
share — — — — — (40,660) (40,660) — — (40,660)

Stock dividends—
NT$0.2 per
share 189,114,498 1,891 9,456 — — (11,347) (11,347) — — —

Consolidated net income — — — — — 42,072 42,072 — — 42,072
Purchase treasury stock—

192,000,000 shares — — — — — — — — (11,392) (11,392)
Cancellation of treasury

stock—192,000,000
shares (192,000,000) (1,920) (4,270) — — (5,202) (5,202) 11,392 —

Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale
securities — — — — — — — 541 — 541

Adjustment to initially
apply SFAS No. 158,
net of tax )622(—)622(———————

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,
2006 (IN NT$) 9,667,845,093 96,678 164,330 44,038 2,680 12,009 58,727 312 — 320,047

Appropriations and distributions of
2006 earnings:

Legal reserve — — — 3,998 — (3,998) — — — —
Reversal of special

reserve — — — — (1) 1 — — — —
Cash dividends—

NT$3.58 per
share — — — — — (34,611) (34,611) — — (34,611)

Capital surplus transferred
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in Millions)

(Continued)

Year Ended December 31
2005 2006 2007
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$

(Note 3)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $33,299 $ 42,072 $49,451 $1,525
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:
Provision for doubtful accounts 920 617 606 19
Depreciation and amortization 41,163 40,650 39,361 1,214
Realized and unrealized loss on derivative financial instruments — 52 856 26
Impairment loss on long-lived assets 343 — 2 —
Impairment loss on long-term investments 740 — 22 1
Gain on sales of short-term investments (232) (125) (362) (11)
Gain on sales of long-term investments — — (10) —
Loss on sale of investments in private mutual fund — 7 — —
Net loss (gain) on disposal of scrap inventories and property, plant and

equipment (305) (751) 34 1
Equity in earnings of equity investees (160) (97) (132) (4)
Cash dividends received from equity investees 66 42 44 1
Unrealized losses on investment in private mutual fund 19 — — —
Share—based compensation 12,770 503 14 —
Employee stock bonus — 1,151 100 3
Deferred income taxes 9,689 1,406 275 8
Minority interest — (13) 339 10
Other — — (2) —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in:
Trade notes and accounts receivable (72) (298) 1,257 39
Inventories (831) 580 (623) (19)
Prepaid expenses (547) 243 (95) (3)
Other current assets (4,210) (494) (426) (13)
Other assets (274) 285 (155) (6)

Increase (decrease) in:
Trade notes and accounts payable (4,002) (1,500) 1,023 32
Income tax payable (4,035) 11,472 (1,000) (31)
Accrued expenses 1,642 4,120 (3,367) (104)
Customers’ deposits (1,012) (738) (290) (9)
Other current liabilities 587 774 (15) —
Accrued pension liabilities 1,381 1,269 2,649 82
Deferred income (772) (1,377) (2,491) (77)
Other liabilities 4 301 183 6

Net cash provided by operating activities 86,171 100,151 87,248 2,690
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)
(Amounts in Millions)

(Continued)

Year Ended December 31
2005 2006 2007
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$

(Note 3)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of available-for-sale securities $ (4,824) $ (4,149) $(22,696) $ (700)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale securities — 12,001 11,738 362
Acquisitions of held-to-maturity financial assets — — (1,198) (37)
Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity financial assets — — 49 2
Acquisition of long-term investments — (97) (1,365) (42)
Proceeds from disposal of long-term investments — — 69 2
Acquisition of investment in private mutual fund (500) — — —
Proceeds from disposal of investments in private mutual fund — 474 — —
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment (22,930) (27,681) (25,068) (773)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 374 779 108 3
Acquisitions of patents and computer software  (139)  (170) (274) (8)
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired — (283) (768) (24)

Net cash used in investing activities (28,019) (19,126) (39,405) (1,215)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in short-term loans — 11 (90) (3)
Payments on principal of long-term loans (200) (202) (910) (28)
Increase in long-term loans — — 22 1
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock option — — 29 1
Cash dividends paid (45,344) (40,660) (34,611) (1,067)
Cash dividends paid to minority stockholders of subsidiaries — — (141) (4)
Minority stockholders’ contribution — — 78 2
Purchase of treasury stock — (11,392) (7,217) (223)

Net cash used in financing activities (45,544) (52,243) (42,840) (1,321)
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGE ON CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS — — (1) —
CASH BALANCE OF SENAO AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES UPON ITS 

CONSOLIDATION — — 801 25
CASH BALANCE OF SENAO NETWORKS AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

UPON ITS DECONSOLIDATION — — (243) (7)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12,608 28,782 5,560 172
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 29,283 41,891 70,673 2,179
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 41,891 $ 70,673 $ 76,233 $ 2,351
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)
(Amounts in Millions)

Year Ended December 31
2005 2006 2007
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$

(Note 3)
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Interest paid $ 2 $ 7 $ 18 $ 1

Income tax paid $ 11,419 $1,287 $15,268 $ 471

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired is as

follows:
Assets acquired $ 456 $ 1,206 $ 37
Goodwill 73 138 4
Negative goodwill — (2) —
Liabilities assumed (246) (574) (17)
Acquisitions of subsidiary, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired $ 283 $ 768 $ 24

NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Current portion of long-term loans $ 200 $ 323 $ 20 $ —

Activities related to the settlement of the pension obligations upon
privatization:

Accrued pension liabilities $ 46,915
Deferred pension cost (34,504)
Deferred income taxes (4,059)
Additional capital contributed by MOTC- pension $ 8,352

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. (Concluded)
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in Millions of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

1. GENERAL

Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. (“Chunghwa”) was incorporated on July 1, 1996 in the Republic of China (“ROC”) pursuant to
the Article 30 of the Telecommunications Act. Chunghwa is a company limited by shares and, prior to August 2000, was wholly
owned by the Ministry of Transportation and Communications (“MOTC”). Prior to July 1, 1996, the current operations of
Chunghwa were carried out under the Directorate General of Telecommunications (“DGT”). The DGT was established by the
MOTC in June 1943 to take primary responsibility in the development of telecommunications infrastructure and to formulate
policies related to telecommunications. On July 1, 1996, the telecom operations of the DGT were spun-off as Chunghwa which
continues to carry out the business and the DGT continues to be the industry regulator.

As a telecommunications service provider of fixed-line and cellular telephone services, within the meaning of applicable
telecommunications regulations of the ROC, Chunghwa was subject to requirements imposed by the MOTC before March 1,
2006. After March 1, 2006, Chunghwa is subject to requirements imposed by the National Communications Commission.

Effective August 12, 2005, the MOTC had completed the process of privatizing Chunghwa by reducing the government
ownership to below 50%. Portions of the MOTC’s common share holdings had been sold, in connection with the foregoing
privatization plan, in domestic public offerings at various dates from August 2000 to July 2003. Portions of the MOTC’s
common share holdings had also been sold to Chunghwa’s employees at various dates from October 2000 to July 2005. In July
2003, the MOTC sold Chunghwa’s common shares in an international offering of securities in the form of American Depository
Shares (“ADS”). In August 2005, the MOTC sold 289,431,000 common shares in the ROC and 1,350,682,000 common shares
in an international offering of securities in the form of ADS. As of August 12, 2005, the MOTC owned 47.84% shares of
Chunghwa and the privatization plan was completed. The MOTC and Taiwan Mobile Co. sold 505,388,900 and 58,959,000
common shares of Chunghwa, respectively, to third parties in the form of ADS amounting to 56,435 thousand units in total on
October 4, 2006. As of December 31, 2007 the MOTC owns 35.25% shares of Chunghwa.

Chunghwa’s common shares were listed and traded on Taiwan Stock Exchange and New York Stock Exchange on October 27,
2000 and on July 17, 2003, respectively.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

Prior to August 12, 2005, the effective date of privatization, Chunghwa maintained its accounting books and records based on
the ROC government regulations for state-owned enterprises, ROC government regulations governing the preparation of
financial statements of public companies and accounting principles generally accepted in the ROC (“ROC GAAP”). Subsequent
to August 12, 2005, Chunghwa is no longer required to follow the ROC government regulations for state-owned enterprises. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements including the accounts of Chunghwa and its subsidiaries (collectively, “the
Company”) have been prepared to present its financial positions, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”).

Subsequent to issuing the Company’s consolidated financial statements for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2007, presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, on March 27, 2008, the
Company determined that the capital reduction that occurred in 2007 was in substance a stock consolidation accompanied by a
cash dividend and consequently earnings per share for all periods has now been retroactively restated.
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Principles of Consolidation

Use of Estimates

Foreign Currency Transactions

Business Combination
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Cash Equivalents

Short-term Investments

Inventories

Long-term Investments

Property, Plant and Equipment

Useful Life (Years)
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Cost of maintenance and repairs, including the cost of replacing minor items not constituting substantial improvements, is
charged to current income.

Gains and losses on the sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recorded as cost of revenues.

Valuation of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144 “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. If the total of the expected future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest
charges) is less than the carrying amount of the assets, a loss is recognized for the excess of the carrying amount over the fair
value of the asset.

3G Concession

3G Concession represents the amount paid by the Company on March 11, 2002 to the ROC government in connection with the
grant of a concession to provide various telecommunication services using spectrum assigned by the MOTC that utilizes the
International Mobile Telecommunication—2000: The Global Standard for Third Generation Wireless Communications
technical standards as announced by the International Telecommunications Union (the “3G concession”). Licenses for 3G 
mobile telecommunication services are granted by the MOTC through a three-step procedure. Applicants first obtain a
concession from the MOTC through a bidding process. The holder of the concession must then obtain a network construction
permit from the DGT. Once the network construction is complete, the applicant may apply for a 3G license from the MOTC.
The Company received a 3G license from MOTC on May 26, 2005 and commenced operations of the network on the same day.
The 3G license is valid through December 31, 2018. The 3G Concession and any additional licensing fees are amortized on a
straight-line basis from the date operations commence through the date the license expires. Amortization expense for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 was NT$447 million, NT$749 million and NT$748 million, respectively.

Patents and Computer Software

Patents are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives ranging from 10 to 20 years. Computer
software costs are capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of three years.
Amortization expenses for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 were NT$154 million, NT$145 million and
NT$150 million, respectively. Accumulated amortization was NT$1,278 million and NT$1,439 million as of December 31,
2006 and 2007, respectively.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recognized at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as
an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is not subject to amortization but is tested for impairment in accordance with statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and other Intangible Assets”.

Intangible Assets—Other

Intangible assets include trademark, customer relationship and order backlog. The trademark is amortized on a straight-line basis
over 3 to 20 years. The customer relationship is amortized in proportionate to expected revenues over three years. The order
backlog is amortized on a straight-line basis over 90 days.
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Revenue Recognition

Concentrations

As of December 31
2006 2007
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Pension Costs

Advertising and Promotional Expenses

Research and Development Costs

Share-based Compensation

Before Application
of SFAS No. 158 Adjustments

After Application
of SFAS No. 158
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The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R)”Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123(R)”),
a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” to recognize compensation cost of options granted by
SENAO. SFAS No. 123R requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant
using an option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense
ratably over the requisite service periods. The Company has estimated the fair value of stock options as of the date of grant or
assumption using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company enters into forward contracts to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk and variability in operating results
due to fluctuations in exchange rates underlying the value of liabilities denominated in foreign currencies until such liabilities
are paid. A forward contract obligates the Company to exchange predetermined amounts of specified foreign currencies at
specified exchange rates on specified dates. These foreign currency forward exchange contracts are denominated in the same
currency in which the underlying foreign currency liabilities are denominated and bear a contract value and maturity date that
approximate the value and expected settlement date, respectively, of the underlying transactions. An option contract offers the
Company the right to buy or sell predetermined amounts of specified foreign currencies at specified exchange rates on specified
dates. The Company also enters into index futures to increase its exposure to movements in a particular index, essentially
leveraging its investment portfolios. Gains and losses on forward contracts, option contracts and index futures are included in
“other income (expenses)”.

Derivatives are recognized at fair value and included in either other current liabilities or other current assets on the balance
sheet.

Income Tax

The Company is subject to income tax in the ROC. The Company accounts for income tax using the asset and liability method.
Under this method, deferred income tax is recognized for losses carried forward and the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between financial statement carrying amounts and their respective tax bases, using enacted laws. The Company
treats the investment tax credit as a reduction of current income taxes of the year in which the credit arises and defers unutilized
tax credit as deferred income tax assets. A valuation allowance is recognized if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is
more likely than not that a portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Under ROC tax regulations, the current year’s tax-basis earnings that are not distributed in the following year are subject to a
10% additional income tax, however, the tax regulations was amended to change 10% income tax from to tax on tax-basis
undistributed earnings to tax on book-basis undistributed earnings in May 2006. This 10% additional income tax is recognized
in the period during which the related income is generated. The Company adjusts the amount of accrued undistributed earnings
tax after the Company’s stockholders approve the distribution of earnings in the following year.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”)
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also
provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, disclosure and transition. The evaluation of a tax
position in accordance with FIN 48 is a two step process. The first step is recognition, where we evaluate whether an individua l
tax position has a likelihood of greater than 50% of being sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the
position, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes. For tax positions that are currently estimated to have
a less than 50% likelihood of being sustained, zero tax benefit is recorded. For tax positions that have met the recognition
threshold in the first step, we perform the second step of measuring the benefit to be recorded. The actual benefits ultimately
realized may differ from the Company’s estimates. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material impact on the Company.
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Earnings Per Share and Per Equivalent ADS

Comprehensive Income

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
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3. U.S. DOLLAR AMOUNTS

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31
2006 2007
NT$ NT$

5. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

December 31
2006 2007

Carrying
Amount

Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

Carrying
Amount

Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
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6. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Year Ended December 31
2005 2006 2007
NT$ NT$ NT$

7. INVENTORIES

December 31
2006 2007
NT$ NT$
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The long-term investments comprise the following:  
  

The Company invested in Skysoft Co., Ltd. (“SKYSOFT”) in October 2007, for a purchase price of NT$67 million. SKYSOFT 
engages mainly in providing of software, electronic information, and advertisement services.  
The Company invested in ELTA in April and October 2007, for a purchase price of NT$27 million and NT$17 million, 
respectively. ELTA is engaged mainly in professional on-line and mobile value-added content aggregative services.  
The Company invested Spring House in October 2006, for a purchase price of NT$22 million. Spring House engages mainly in 
internet services.  
The Company invested GMC in December 2007, for a purchase price of NT$168 million. GMC engages mainly in sales of 
computer software and services of circuit engineering and wire communication.  
The Company invested ETS in December 2007, for a purchase price of NT$20 million. ETS engages mainly in electronic 
facilities and equipments sales.  
The Company evaluates its cost investees for impairment annually. In 2005, the Company identified an impairment indicator in 
TFC and determined the investment in TFC was impaired due to an adverse change in market condition of the industry in which 
TFC operates. The Company recognized an impairment of  

  

8. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 

   December 31
   2006   2007

   
Carrying

Value   
% of 

Ownership  
Carrying

Value   
% of 

Ownership
   NT$      NT$    

Equity investees:         

Chunghwa Investment (“CHI”)   $ 975  49  $ 974  49
Taiwan International Standard Electronics (“TISE”)   609  40   626  40
Senao Networks, Inc. (“SNI”)   —    —     271  48
Skysoft Co., Ltd. (“SKYSOFT”)  —   —     70  30
ELTA Technology Co., Ltd. (“ELTA”)    —    —     45  32
Spring House Entertainment Inc. (“SHE”)   17  30   16  30

            

  1,601     2,002  
            

Cost investees:         

Taipei Financial Center (“TFC”)   1,790  12   1,790  12
Global Mobile Corp. (“GMC”)   —    —     168  15
iD Branding Ventures (“iDBV”)   75  8   75  8
RPTI International (“RPTI”)   71  12   49  12
Essence Technology Solution, Inc. (“ETS”)  —   —     20  9
N.T.U. Innovation Incubation Corporation (“NTUI”)    —    —     12  9
Siemens Telecommunication Systems (“Siemens”)   5  15   5  15
3-Link Information Service (“3-Link”)   4  12   4  10
eASPNet Inc.   —    2   —    2

            

   1,945     2,123  
            

Held-to-maturity securities:         

Corporate bond   —    —     450  —  
Collateralized loan obligation  —   —     48  —  

            

  —       498  
            

 $ 3,546    $ 4,623  
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Exhibit 12.1

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Tan Ho Chen, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the period covered by this report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors and the audit committee of the company’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation ofi nternal controls
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: April 23, 2008

By: /s/
Name: Tan Ho Chen
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Headquarters

21-3 Hsinyi Rd., Sec. 1, Taipei 100
Tel: 886-2-2344-3691
Fax: 886-2-2356-8306
http://www.cht.com.tw

Northern Taiwan Business Group

42 Renai Rd., Sec. 1, Taipei 100
Tel: 886-2-2344-2485
Fax: 886-2-2397-0539

Southern Taiwan Business Group

230 Linsen 1st Rd., Kaohsiung 800
Tel: 886-7-344-3350
Fax: 886-7-344-3391

Mobile Business Group

35 Aikuo E. Rd., Taipei 106
Tel: 886-2-2344-2825
Fax: 886-2-2356-3023

Data Communications Business Group

21 Hsinyi Rd., Sec. 1, Taipei 100
Tel: 886-2-2344-4756
Fax: 886-2-2394-8404

Contact Information for Chunghwa Telecom and Affiliates

International Business Group

31 Aikuo E. Rd., Taipei 106
Tel: 886-2-2344-3580
Fax: 886-2-2394-0944

Enterprise Business Group

8F, 26 Hangjhou S. Rd., Sec. 1, Taipei 100
Tel: 886-2-2344-5899
Fax: 886-2-2392-1170

Telecommunication Laboratories

12 Minzu Rd., Sec. 5, Lane 551
Yangmei Jen, Taoyuan County 326
Tel: 886-3-424-4239
Fax: 886-3-424-4444

Telecommunication Training Institute

168 Minzu Rd., Panchiao, Taipei County 220
Tel: 886-2-2963-9587
Fax: 886-2-2963-9453










